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Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

\

Five-Year

Compound

For the year 1999 1998* Change Growth Rate

DOLLARSINTHOUSANDS

Net interest income . . . . . . . . . . ..$ 22,460 $ 20,106 1270 8%

Other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,610 15,076 23 17

Other expenaes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,980 24,695 17 11

Netincome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,961 6,857 16 14

At year end

DOLLARSINTHOUSANDS

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $436,820 $391,840 1170 670

Total netloans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 334,539 277,085 21 8

Total deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 371,068 342,357 8 4

Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . 46,719 42,221 11 11

Per common share

Earniuga per common share . . . ..$ 1.83 $ 1.58 1690 1570

Earnings per common
share-assuming dilution . . . . . . .$ 1.75 $ 1.51 16 14

Dividenda declared . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.60 0.465 29 30

Bookvalue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.74 9.81 9 12

Closiugprice . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23.88 27.25 (12) 25

Selected ratios

Return on average assets . . . . . . . 1.99% 1.91~o — —

Return on average
shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . 17.9770 17.06% — —

*Reclassified for comparative purposes.



Dear Shareholders:

The Corporation’s financial performance this year was solid; net income

increased 16%. Our results show very well, especially against traditional banks.

What we have accomplished in the way of expanding our revenue streams

separates us from all but a few banking institutions. Revenue from non-interest

related banking services, a key indicator of our Bank’s development as a diverse

financial service operation, amounted to $18.6 million this past year. Net interest

income, traditional banking profit, was %22.5 million. So, 4570 of our revenue is

now fee-based. We’ve grown revenues from these fees at a 15% average annual

rate over the last ten years.

And, though we’ve grown, we continue to possess a unique combination of three

elements which separate us from every other banking institution I know of our

From left:
people, our size, and the breadth of our services lines.

Robert L. Stevens

Diane C. McDonald We’ve a wide range of financial services in place: financial planning, investment
Samuel C. Wasson, Jr. management, personal financial accounting, insurance, tax advice, and

foundation management, all in addition to traditional banking. Assembling the

services has not been difficult; meshing them into cohesive offerings,

understandable to our customers, has proved more challenging than

I imagined. We’ve still much to do to bring the service offerings

re have to our clients in a seamless, thoughtful way.

The year’s activities were dominated by two controlling

factors. First, was the addition of two new subsidiaries:

Joseph W. Roskos & Co., a personal financial accounting

and tax firm which is the area’s premier Family Office

service provide~ and CDC Capital Management, Inc., a

registered investment advisory firm. The second factor was

the departure of several in our Investment Management

and Tmst Division.

The departure of these employees, and the loss of business

that resulted, coincided with the shift in culture which I

initiated in the fall of 1998, and the commitment I’ve asked

from everyone. I intend to create an organization fully aligned

with client-oriented service and professional excellence, one

which encourages open, candid communication, and

trustworthy relationships, both within the Corporation and

with clients.

—
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To accomplish our organizational development, I

have engaged a professional consulting firm, which

we have been working with for over a year, to create

a “Learning Organization.” Happily, I can see

results, both within me, and in those around me, but

a bumpy road it is!

Joseph W. Roskos, who joined the Corporation in

January as CEO of Joseph W. Roskos & Co., our

Family Office, has responsibility for our Trust

Division and has added five seasoned professionals to

our Trust Administration staff, the backbone of the

division. Three investment professionals have been

hired in 1999. And to strengthen the Investment

Management services we offer—through Investment

Counselors of Bryn Mawr, the Trust Division, CDC

Capital Management, Inc., and Bryn Mawr Brokerage

Company, Inc. —at year end, I appointed Thomas M.

Petro to lead that effort. Tom came to the Bank ten

years ago and has proven to be an excellent manager.

The quality of our investment management services

has remained consistent. We have been a large-cap

growth style manager since 1988, and have

continued to provide a fine investment performance,

as measured by our flagship fund offering which

advanced 25~o this year, exceeding the Standard &

Poor 500 average. We have, over many years,

delivered consistently fine investment performance.

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

Creation

investment advice

savings

loans (business/personal)

401(k) management

Management

investment management

family office (bill paying/tax returns)

cash management (personal/business)

Member Banking (highly personalized routine

banking service)

business banking

Protection

tax advicelpreparation

insurance @roperty/casualty and life)

annuities

custody services

Eamfer

planning

estate administration

trust administration

foundation management

So, we had an excellent year, and, more importantly,

we’re making headway despite our growing pains.

I’ll keep on pressing to have us develop, learn,

and grow. I’ve been CEO for twenty years, and an

employee for forty. My goal is to see that Bryn Mawr

Bank Corporation becomes one of the country’s

premier providers of personal financial service

to wealthy families. Members of the Board and I are

working on my succession to insure a smooth transi-

tion when the time is right.
/i/&

There’s much in the financial section to show the

year’s results, so please read on to know more about

our financial performance.

I welcome your inquiry, am happy to respond to any

question you have, and will do my very best to

continue to keep Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation

worthy of your support.

Sincerely,

Finally, let me attempt, now, to put what we do for Robert L. Stevens
clients in understandable order for you. We help Chairman

create, manage, protect, and transfer wealth for our February 25,2000

clients.
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-.T.h_eYear in._Review _____._..___

As we begin the new millennium, The Bryn Mawr Trust Company is a very

different institution from the neighborhood bank that was established over a

century ago. Now, the principal subsidiary of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation,

it has evolved from a traditional bank into a diversified financial service

provider. While continuing to maintain the high quality of our traditional

competencies, we recognize that to compete successfully, we must respond

fully to the more sophisticated and complex financial needs of our

constituency.

——.—— -.—_

From left:
Radclyffe F.Thompson
Joseph H. Bachtiger
Randy G. Thomas
Lisa M. Brinton
Joseph W. Roskos
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Beginning in 1996, the Corporation began to expand upon its traditional banking

and trust business by offering diverse financial services including: individual

investment management, investment advisory services, brokerage, tax

counseling, insurance, financial planning, and expanded family office, Or

personal accounting services.

A number of factors accelerated the shift in direction from remaining a

community bank to becoming a full financial service provider. The major

motivating factor was, however, the inherently slow growth of traditional banking

business, which demanded that we expand revenue streams to include more fee-

based products and services.

OUR FWICHISE

We are fortunate to be located in the heart of the ftith largest wealth market in

the nation. We have an established franchise concentrated in the affluent

Philadelphia suburban area known as the “Main Line.” We are in a prime market

to take advantage of the opportunity that is being created by dramatic

demographic changes, such as the aging of the baby boomers, the new wealth

created by a strong stock market, and the transfer of wealth from generation to

generation.

Earnings Per Share ,999

1998

1997

1996

1995 I

$0.00 $0.50 $1.00 $1.50 $2.00

Common Stock

‘O’””’’’s”’’’ =------- ‘~ ‘

,.
__.,. 1

$0 $10 $15 $20 $25 $30

■ Book Value

❑ Market Value
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We find that “bigger is better” is no longer the popular perception when it comes

to the financial service industry. There is a place for a small financial institution

that can provide first quality financial products and services in a warm personal

way. Our ability to connect clients to related services, and our “client first”

approach has been well received. And while we continue to focus on personal

attention, we have added convenient services that enable our clients to do

business with us on their own terms—in person, by phone, or on-line.

WEALTHWTAGEMENT

Through the acquisition of the Joseph W. Roskos Co., we now have the pre-

eminent family business office in the Mid-Atlantic region. Our Family Office

defines our approach to delivering high quality, personalized financial services to

wealthy individuals and their families. We simplify the complexities associated

with wealth by serving as all outsourced accounting department for a family –

doing for them the work that would typically be performed by the accounting

department of a small business. This includes functions like collecting income

from various sources, paying bills, keeping payroll records, preparing monthly

income and expense summaries, tax planning and return preparation, insurance

reviews, will and estate reviews and other functions.

ft:
S. MacQueen, Ill

Nancy L. Gross
J. Michael Devine
Jere E. Estes
William A, McNeal
Thomas M. Petro
F. Christopher Campbell, 111
William A. Keefe
John M. Grib
Andrea Pilch
Eric D. Thorne
Peter T. Maher, Jr.
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Family Office services can stand alone, or can be used by clients in concert with

our well-established trust and investment services. In 1999, we acquired

CDC Capital Management to expand our investment capabilities. Through CDC

our clients have access to investment talent from a global network of institutional

money managers representing a broad range of investment styles. This comple-

ments our large cap growth style of investing client assets that has returned

strong, consistent, reliable investment performance. Our Qualified Equity Fund

(QEF) outperformed the S&P 500 again in 1999 with a total return of 24.93%.

We use the same large cap investment discipline in selecting equities for

individual client portfolios as we do for our QEF.

We have expanded our services for individuals to include securities brokerage, tax

planning, estate planning, foundation management and insurance. Insurance is a

key product offering in helping clients transfer wealth and protect their assets.

Business Advisory

From left:
Martin F. Gallaghar, Jr.
Joseph G. Keefer
Sara P. Worrell
David J, Place
Anna Marie Lucianetti
Michele M. Fritz
Carmen L. Fiorentino
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Focus ONBUSINESS

In the past decade, we increased the depth of our commercial banking activities

by adding strong cash management capabilities and employee benefits services,

such as 401k plan administration and pension plan management. We have built

upon this core group of commercial services to include new services: employee

group health and welfare plan administration, executive compensation and

benefit plan design consulting services, tax planning services and specialty

insurance services like key-man insurance, error and omission and director and

officer liability insurance. Our approach is to help business clients measure and

manage insurable risks.

Despite the industry-wide slow growth rate experienced in the commercial line of

business, our business banking continues to grow. Our commercial loan portfolio

grew 34% in 1999. As we look ahead, we expect to see more capital markets

activity by helping business clients use such well established risk management

techniques as interest rate swaps and other hedging products.

TotalAssets ,999
IN MILLIONSOFDOLLARS

1998 ■ Corporation’s
Balance Sheet

1997 ❑ Loans Sold

1996 ❑ Fidelity Funds

❑ Trust Assets
1995

■ CDC Assets
o 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500

TrustAssets ,939
IN kNwONSOFDOLLARS i

~

1998 f

■ Discretionary
1995 ~

H Non-Discretionary
o 500 1000 1500 2000 2500
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CONSUMERBA\mTG

Our banking business continues to grow. During 1999, we experienced strong

growth in demand and NOW accounts. We maintain six full-service branches. At

the start of the year 2000, we opened our sixth limited service office in affluent

retirement communities. This one is at White Horse Village in Newtown Square.

The retirement community offices continue to be a good source for banking, trust,

and investment management business.

UPGRAD~G FACILITIES

Our goal is to create facilities dedicated solely to our work and interaction with

our clients. We want to simplify the interaction of clients with our experts,

providing them easy access to all of our products, services and professional staff.

Major renovations are planned for the main building, which currently houses a

mix of client contact, and staff support personnel. Our staff support personnel

will be relocated to Buildings Two and Six South Bryn Mawr Avenue, just across

the street from our main office in Bryn Mawr. The renovations to create a center

for our customer-focused activities are expected to take two years and begin in

June of 2000.

Community B.anl<ing
d

From left:
Susan J. Healy
Susan B. George
Richard J. Fuchs
Thomas J. Giamoni
Joseph M. Tyson, Jr.
Sandra H. Evans
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FINANCIALREFORMBILL

In November the Gramm-Leach-BIiIey Act was officially signed. Breaking down the

Depression-era legal barriers, banks, investment firms and insurance companies

can now merge, creating greater choice and convenience for the consumer.

Customer confidentiality in this new de-regulated era raises privacy issues.

Under the new law, financial companies must disclose to their clients, their

procedures for protecting client privacy. We have drafted privacy policies for all

of our entities, with a special policy drafted to specifically address the insurance

business. We remain committed to the highest standards of protecting client

confidentiality.

Ever since its establishment in 1889, Bryn Mawr Trust has played a leading role

in support of community activities including education, health, senior citizen

concerns, cultural events, civic duties, business organizations, and the general

well being of the individuals and businesses within those areas where it transacts

business. The Bank intends to continue its commitment to the community both

financially, and by providing leadership to maximize the effectiveness of these

efforts.

Total Revenue Streams

lNM[mONsOFDOLMM~ ‘=-=’’”
1998 . ..——- —.-.. .. . . . . . . -

1997 -... .,-.— . . ____

1996 ■ Trust Fees

❑ Net Interest income
1995 . z —.

~ Other Non-Interest
o 10 20 30 40 50 Income

Total Corporation _
Average Assets 1999

IN MIUONSOFDOLLARS _
1998 i
,..
,--—

1!

1996

,._.=_

o 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400
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What’s Ahead?

In the ever-changing financial landscape, a myriad of financial service providers

stand ready to satisfy almost any financial need a client could face. Yet, we firmly

believe that there is a significant place for Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation in the

crowded financial service marketplace. We believe that personal care, delivered

warmly by competent and trustworthy experts will be in demand well into this

new century. So, based on that premise, we continue to strive to be the place for

personal financial service attention and trusted advice.

TotalAverage Deposits ~.. ”
IN MILLIONSOFDOLLAW N99

1998
I

1997

1996

1995

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

TransactionAccounts ‘-‘“
Average Balances !?

IN~ILUONSOFDOLLARS
1998 I

1997

1996

1995

0 50 100 150 200
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The Brvn Mawr Trust Company
J

801 Lancaster Avenue

Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010-3396

610-525-1700

Senior Management
Robert L. Stevens*
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and President

Samuel C. Wasson, Jr.*
ViceCheirman and Secretary

Joseph H. Bachtiger
Executive Vice President, Trust Administration

Robert J. Ricciardi*
Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Policy Officer

Joseph W. Roskos*
Executive Vita President, Trust

Lisa M. Brinton
Senior Vice President, Estate Planning

June M. Falcone
Senior Vice President, Banking Operations

Lester E. Gallagher, III
Senior Vice President, Trust

Alison E. Gers
Senior Vice President, Marketing

Joseph G. Keefer
Senior Vice President and Chief Lending Officer

Paul M. Kistler, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Facilities, Human Resources
Security and Compliance

Donald B. Krieble
Senior Vice President, Consumer Credit Services

William F. Mannion, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Corporate Sales

William R. Mixon
Senior Vice President, Information Systems,

and Chief Technology Officer

Thomas M. Petro
Senior Vice President, Investment Management

Joseph W. Rebl*
Senior Vice President, Treasurer, and
Chief Financial Officer

I’~~, Far

Walter Smedley, III
Senior Vice President, Corporate Sales

Leo M. Stenson
Senior Vice President and Auditor

Stephen J. Collar
Group Vice President, Consumer Credit Services

Carmen L. Fiorentino
Group Vice President, Commercial &
Real Estate Lending Services

Richard J. Fuchs
Group Vice President, Community Banking

Geoffrey L. Halberstadt
Group Vice President, Commercial & Real Estate Lending

Services, and Risk Management Officer

Joseph S. Saraceno
Group Vice President, Loan Accounting

Maine O. Skelly
Group Vice President and Comptroller

‘Also officer of the Corporation

Insurance

From left:
William H. Giese
Robert M. Fedoris
John G. Daniel
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Other Financial Services:

BMT Mortgage Company
A division of The Bryn Mawr Trust
Company

Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania

Patrick J. Keenan, Managing Director

Bryn Mawr Brokerage
Company, Inc.
A subsidia~ of Bryn Mawr Bank
Corporation

Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania

Thomas M. Petro, President and Chief

Executive Officer

CDC Capital Management, Inc.
A subsidiary of Bryn Mawr Bank

Corporation

2 South Bryn Mawr Avenue

Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010

J. Michael Devine, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Insurance Counselors of Bryn
Mawr, Inc.
A subsidia~ of The Bryn Mawr Trust
Company

Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania

John G. Daniel, President and Chief

Executive Officer

Investment Counselors of Bryn
Mawr
A department of the Investment
Management Division

Four Tower Bridge

200 Barr Harbor Drive, Suite 225

West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania

19428

Jere E. Estes. Senior Vice President

Joseph W. Roskos & Co.
A subsidiary of Bryn Mawr Bank

Corporation

2011 Renaissance Boulevard, Suite 200

King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406

Joseph W. Roskos, Chairman

RobertM.Fedoris, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Tax Counselors of
Bryn Ma\w, Inc.
A subsidia~ of Bryn Mawr Bank
Corporation

Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania

William H. Giese, President and

Chief Executive Officer

Directors:

Richard B. Cuff
Chairman, Cuffco, Inc.

Warren W. Deakins
Self-employed, Insurance Sales

John D. Firestone
Partner, Secor Group

William Harral, III
Chairman, C&D Technologies, Inc.

Wendell F. Holland, Esq.
Counsel to Obermayer, Rebmann,

Maxwell & Hippel, L,L.P.

Phyllis M. Shea
Attorney-at-Law, Shea and Shea, L,L.P.

Robert L. Stevens
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and
President of Bryn Mawr Bank
Corporation and The Bryn Mawr Trust

Company

B. Loyall Taylor, Jr.
President, Taylor Gifts, Inc.

Nancy J. Vickers
President, Bryn Mawr College

Samuel C. Wasson, Jr.
Secretay of Bryn Mawr Bank

Corporation and Vice Chairman and
Secretary of The Bryn Mawr Trust

Company

Thomas A. Williams
VicePresident, Secretaryflreasurer
Houghton International, Inc.

Annual Meeting:

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation will be held
in Wyndham Alumnae House, Bryn Mawr
College, Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania, on

Tuesday, April 18, 2000, at 2:00 p.m.

Market Makers:

F. J. Morrissey & Co., Inc.
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

McConnell Budd & Dowries
Morristown, New Jersey

Ryan Beck and Company, Inc.
West Orange, New Jersey

Janney Montgomery L.L.C.
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Spear, Leeds & Kellogg
NewYork, New York

Knight Securities, L.P.
NewYork, New York

Herzog, Heine, Geduld, Inc.
NewYork, New York

Corporate Headquarters

801 Lancaster Avenue
Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania
19010-3396
610-526-2302

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers L.L.P.
2400Eleven Penn Center

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2962

&gal Counsel

Monteverde, McAlee,
Fitzpatrick, Tanker &
Hurd, P.C.
One Penn Center at Suburban Station

1617 John F, Kennedy Boulevard

Suite 1500

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-1815

Stock Listing

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation common

stock is traded over-the-counter and is

listed on the NASDAQ National Market
System under the symbol BMTC.

Registrar & Transfer Agent

ChaseMellon Shareholder
Services, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 3315,

South Hackensack, NJ 07808-1915

www.chasemellon. com

Form 1O-K

A copy of the Corporation’s Form 10-K,
including financial statement schedules

as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, is available without charge

to shareholders upon written request to

Samuel C. Wasson, Jr., Secretary, Bryn
Mawr Bank Corporation, 801 Lancaster

Avenue, Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania 19010-
3396, or via e-mail to

swasson@bmtc,com.

Equal Employment
Oppotiunity

The Corporation continues its commit-
ment to equal opportunity employment
and does not discriminate against minori-

ties or women with respect to
recruitment, hiring, training, or promo-

tion. It is the policy of the Corporation to
comply voluntarily with the practices of
Affirmative Action.
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Selected Financial Data

For the years ended Dccemher 31,

Interes tincolll e. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Idoan loss provision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net interest incorneafte rloanloss provision
Othcrincorn e. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Income beforcincomc taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Applicat)le income taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Nctincomc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Pcr share data:
Earnings per common share:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Diviclends dcclarerl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
\Veighted-avcragc shares o~ltstan&ng . . . . .
Dililtive pot.cntial cornmonshares . . . . . . . .

Adjustecl w’eight.cd-avcrages hares . . . . . .

At Deccmhcr 31,

Total asset s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
F~arning assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Shareholclers’ eqllity . . . . . ..o... . . . . . . . . . . .

For t}lr years en([e(ll)c~(,lnh~r31,

Sclectcd financial ratios:
N’ctintereslm argill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income to:

Average total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Average shareholders’ equity. . . . . . . . . . . . .

Average sharcholde].s’ cqllity to average total
assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Dividcncls declared pcr share t.onet itlcomc pcr
basiccornmonshar e........ . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(irl tho[is[zrtds,except fir share and per share data)

1999 1998’ 1997* 1996* 1995’

$ 28,317 $ 26,082 $ 24,960 $ 24,337 $ 23,617
5,857 5,976 6,929 6,490 7,246

22,460 20,106” 18,031 17,847 16,371
250 150 200 350 500

22,210 19,956 17,831 17,49? 15,871
18.610 15,076 12,086 10,423 9.197.7-..
28;980 24;695 20;837 18,978 18,325

11.840 10,337 9,080 8,942 6.743., ..-
3;879 3;480 2;950 2,900 2,100

$ 7,961 $ 6,857 $ 6,130 $ 6,042 $ 4,643

$ 1.83 $ 1.58 $ 1,40 $ 1.38 $ 1.06
$ 1.75 $ 1.51 $ 1.3.3 1..33 $ 1.04
$ 0.60 $ 0.465 $ 0.36 “$ 0.46 $ ().25

4,349,403 4,327,297 4,392,162 4,385,094 4,377,056
193,915 225,708 203,660 151,698 90,740

4,543,318 4,553,005 4,595,822 4,536,792 4,467,796

(irt. t}tottsurlt[s)

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

@ 436,820 $ 391,840 $ 374,210 $ 345,747 $ 354,956
395,952 357,683 327,942 305,911 314,089
371,068 342,357 328,806 303,183 317,601

46,719 42,221 39,349 35,808 31,903

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

1.99 ‘N) ~.91~o 1.74~o ~.79~o 1.39%
17.97’%1 17.06% 16.45% 18.16% ~~.79yo

11.1O’X 11.17~o 10.60~0 9.88% 8.79%

32.79(%) 29.43% 25.71% 33.33% 23.58~0

*Recl[lss!Jicdjbrco\tlparatiL’epi~rposes.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following is a discussion of the consolidai.ed results
of operations of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the “Corporation”) for each of tile three

years in the pcriocl ended December 31, 1999, as well as
the financial condition of the Corporation as of December
31, 1999 and 1998. The Bryn Mawr Trust Cc~rnpany
(the “Bank”), Tax Counselors of 13ryn Mawr, Inc.

(“TCBM”), Bryn Mawr Brokerage company, [nc.
(“BM Brokerage”), CDC Capital Management, Inc.
(“CDC”) and Joseph W. Roskos & Co. (“JWR&Co”) are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Corporation. Insurance
Counselors of 13ryn Mawr, inc. (“IC13M”) is a wholly-
ownerl subsidiary of the Bank. This discussion should be

read in conjunction with Ihe Corporation’s consolidated
financial statements beginning on page 18.

From time to time, the Corporation has and will continue
to make statements that may include forward-looking
information. Any forward-looking statements contained
herein are subject to certain risks and uncertainties,
many of which are out of rnauagement.’s direct. control,
that col]ld cause actual results to differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking st at.ement.s.
Examples include, but are not. limit.ecl to, the effect. of
prevailing economic conclitious and the current interest
rat e environment, as well as the overall direction of
government. policies and the actions and policy clireclives
of the Federal Reserve Board, competitive factors in i.he
Corporation’s market area and risks associated with the
management of the credit function and fiduciary
activities.

SIGNIFICANTITEMS FOR 1999,

Gro\vth of Non-interest Revenue Streams Through
Ncw Corporation Acquisitions

A strategic goal of the Corporation cent.inucs to be
providing its customer base wit h financial services and
products that. are designed to meet t hc ever-evolving
needs of customers. The addition of new financial
scrviccs and products creates new sources of uon-int.crest.
revenue. In January 1999, the Corporation acquired CDC
in orclcr t.o offer invest mcnt advisory scrviccs to its
customer base, thereby providing a means of increasing
its non-int.ercst revenue streams. Also cst.ablished in

January 1999 was BM Brokerage, to enable Ihc
Corporation’s customer base to have access t.o brokerage
services (hrough the Corporation. In April 1999, the
Bank acquired JWI{&Co. t.o provide family }>usiness
office services and products to its customers. This
transact ion was effective as of January 1, 1999. 130th
acquisitions report cd profits for thc year, while BM
Brokerage report ccl a nominal loss. The three companies
were primarily responsible for a 23% increase in total

other income for 1999, compared t.o t.hc same period
in 1998.

The Corporation’s othe~ non-interest relat ecl lines of
business, ICBM and TCBM, also produced profits (or t hc
year, while increasing their non-interest revenue s{rcams
over 1998 levels.

The Bank’s business lines which provide non-interest
rcvcnuc st.rearns, the Investment Managerncnt and Trust
Division, and BMT !Mort.gage Company, divisions of the
Bank, were profitable in 1999. The segment profit of the
Investment Management and Trust Division grew by
13Y0, from $4,154,000 for 1998 to $4,713,000 for 1999.
Due primarily to an incrcasc in interest rates on
residential mort.gage loans in 1999, making financing lCSS
attractive for borrowers, BM1’ Mortgage Company,
cleclicatcd to the origination and sale of residential
mortgage loans to the secondary mortgage market,
showed a 39°A cleclinc in its segment profit from
$1,329,000 in 1998 to $805,000 in 1999. The effect of
changing interest. rates on BMT Mort.gage Company’s
profitability runs counter cyclical to the Bank’s Banking
segrncnt. As interest. rates rnovcd upward during 1999
and 13MT Mortgage Company’s loan origination and sale
activity declined, t hc 13ank’s net int.crest. margin and
related net interest income generally increased. whilt~ ncl
int crest incornc increased by $27354,000 or 12Y0,
$393,000 or 17% of the increase was attributable to rate
changes in 1999.

Exclusive of gains on the sale of other real cst atc ownccl
(“O1{EO”), rcportecl in both periods, the growth in non-
int.crest. revenues resulted in an incrcasc in thc percent agc
of non-int crest revenues earned in 1999, compared to
total revenues, to 40% from 36% for 1998.

l)ividcnd tncrcasc

Based on a cent inuecl grow( h in record earnings, t hc
Corporation increased its quart crly diviclcnd payment for
1999 by 25%, from $0.12 pcr share in 1998 to $0.15
pcr share in 1999. The Corporation’s dividend payout
ratio was 32.79% of basic earnings pcr share for 1999,
cornparcd to 29.43 Yo for 1998.

Stock Repurchase Program

During 1997, the Corporation established a stock
repurchase program, authorizing management IO
repurchase up to So/O of thc then outstanding common
shares of the Corporation. This program was rcncwecl
again in 1999, authorizing rnanagemcnt 10 repurchase Up
to 5% of the outstanding shares as of LMarch 1999, wb ilc
not. Sperlcling more t ban $6,500,000 (t.hc “stock

Repurchase Program”). During 1999, thc Corporat iorl

repurchased 96,500 shares of the Corpor’at.ion;s common
stock, at a cost of $2,530,000.
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RESUI.TS OF OPERATIONS

Overvielv

The Corporai ion reporte(l a 16% increase in net income
of’ $7,961,000 for the year cncfecf Deccml]er 31, 1999,
another record year for Corporation earnings. N’el income
for 1998 arnounie(l to $6,857,000.

Earnings per cornrnon share amountcct to $1.83 in 1999,
a 16°/0 incrcasc over $1.58 for 1998. Earnirlgs p~r
common share-assurning dilution were $1.75 and $1.51
for 1999 and 1998, respectively. The diluiivc poicntial
common shares addccf to i.be weight.ed-average shares
outstanding were 193,915 and 225,708 for 1999 ancf
1998, respectively.

These record earnings results for 1999 were due to a
number of factors. Net interest income, spurred on by a
IS% increase in average outstanding loans, incr~~asc~l by
$2,354,000 or 12%. Non-int crest revenue streams grew
by $3,534,000 or 23Y0. This growl h is cfuc primarily to
the a(htilion of ncw rcvcnuc streams from Ct)C anrf
JWR&Co., acquired in early 1999 (“the Ncw
Acquisitions”). Fees from investment Managcrnent and
Trust revenues increased by $512,000 or 6% over similar
revenues for 1998. During 1999, five Trust officers
rcsignecl from the Bank (t hc “Resignations”), taking
some trust accounts wit h them. The Resignations an~l
rclate{l loss of these accounts causecl a $298,000 clecrease
in relatcrt trust fees in 1999. l+owevcr, aft.cr accounting
for the related dccrcasc in salary and fringe benefit
expenses, combined wit h the t.irning of the t.rans fer of the
trust. accounts attribuiablc to the Rcsignat ions, prc-t.ax
income increased by $116,000.

Exclusive of OREO related revenues, total ot.hcr income
increased by $3,713,000 or 25°/0 over similar revenues
for 1998. Other expenses increased $4,285,000 or 17%
in 1999, comparccl to 1998. This increase in other
expense is partially clue to the N’cw Acquisitions.

Return on average assets for tile year ir~crease~ to ~ .99%
from 1.91 % in 1998, while return on average equity for
1999 was 17.97% compared to 17.06% in 1998.

EARNINGs PER~ORNI1iNCE

Lines of Business

The Corporation continues to have four significant
business lines from which it derives its earnings. Its core
business line is tllc Banking line of business. AClditional
earnings streams arc obtained from its Investment.
Management and Trust line of business and its Mortgage
Banking line of business-the origination, servicing and
sale of mort.gage loans to the secondary mortgage
market. The fourth segment., incluclccl in “All Other-” in
the following segrnentat ion analysis, has net revenues
from financial services and products, offcrecf through its
subsidiaries, as well as the Bank>s subsidiary, ICBM.

Following is a scgmcnlation analysis of lhe results of
operations for those lines of busiocss for 1999 and 1998:

TABL13 1 - Line of Business Analysis

((lt)llor.ii, Iltf,ri.vitt,fl.v)

Net interest income . .
Less loan loss provision . . .

Net interest income after
loan loss provision . . . . . .

Other income
Fees for investment

management and trust
services . . . . . . . . . . . .

Service charges on
deposit accounts . . . . . .

Other fees and service
charges . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net gain on sale of loans
Gain on sale of other real

estate owned . . . . . . . .
Other operating income

Total other income. . . . . . . .
Other expenses:

Salaries-regular . . . . . . . .
Salaries-other . . . . . . . . . .
Fringe benefits . . . . . . . . .
Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other operating expenses

Total other expenses. . . .

Segment profit . . . . . . . . . . .

“A of segment profit. . . . . . .

(flollfzr.viftllI(JII.vmi(/.,)

Net interest income . . . . . . .
Less loan loss provision . . .

Net interest income after
loan loss provision . . . . . .

Other income
Fees for investment

management and trust
services . . . . . . . . . . . .

Service charges on
deposit atiounts. .

Other fees and service
charges . . . . . . .. . . . . . .

Net gain on sale of loans
Gain on sale of other real

estate owned . . . . . . . .
Other operating income

Total other income. . . . . . . .
Other expenses:

Salaries-regular . . . . . . . .
Salaries-other. . . . . . . . . .
Fringe benefits . . . . . . . . .
Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other operating expenses

Total other expenses. . . . . .

Segment profit (loss) . . . . .

“A of segment profit (loss)

1900”

%Iorfgtlgr All
rrllllklog ‘rrus( rrll]lki!l~ O(l]Cr CllllsOli[llllt,(l

$22,310 $ — $ 145 $ 5 $22,460
25rr ——— 250

22,060 — 145 5 22,210

— 9,784 — — 9,784

1,156 — — — 1,156

571 — 762 — 1,333
44— 984 — 1,028

—— 45
1,1:: = — 4,568 ,5,683

2,931 9,784 1,746 4,568 19,029

7,251 2,852 469 1,874 12,446
1,754 230 76 184 2,246
1,474 565 80 215 2,334
3,090 476 149 456 4,171
5,218 948 310 1,726 8,202

18.787 5.071 1.086 4,455 29,399

$ ;204 $4;713 $ “805 $ “118 $11,841J

52% 40% 770 1% 100%

19q8*

hlortgt)ge All
B:]llkillg l’rllst lrilllkillg otll(,r (;[)l]sa]litlaltt!<l

$20,052 $ – $ 51 $ 3 $20,106
150— —— 150

19,902 — 51 3 19,956

— 9,272 — — 9,272

1,169 — — — 1,169

571 — 701 — 1,272
35 — 1,847 — 1,682

224——— 224
631 — — 1.079 1,710.—.

2,630 9,272 2,348 1,079 15,329

6,489 2,863 417 520 10,289
1,692 386 117 180 2,375
1,232 549 74 53 1,908
2,793 422 180 3,457
5.003 898 4% 618 .6,919

17,209 5.118 1,070 1,551 24,948

$5,323 $4;154 $1,329 $ (469) $10,337

51Y. 40% 13% -4”A 10070

Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation, Tax Counselors of Bryn Mawr, Inc., Insurance
Counselors of Bryn Mawr, Inc., Bryn Mawr Brokerage Company, Inc., CDC
Capital Management, Inc. and Joseph W. Roskos & Company have all been
aggregated in All Other.

● Reclassified for comparative purposes.

The table reflects operating profits (losses) of ca~ll line of
business before income taxes.

There was an increase in Invest.rnent. Management ancl
Trusl. operating profits, up 130A, while the Mortgage
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Banking segment’s operating profits decreased 39% in
1999, compared to 1998. The Banking segment ‘S
operating profits grew by 17“A from 1998 lCVCIS. ‘rhc

13anking segment’s percentage of operaiing profits stofj(l
at 52% for 1999, compared to 51 YO for 1998.
Investment. Management and Trust’s percentage of
operating profit was 40 ‘A)for both years. Tt le Mortgage
Banking segment’s share of operating profits dccrcased
from l~% in 1998 to 7~0 in 1999, while the “All Other”
segment,, inclll ding t,hc NCW Acquisitions, incrcascd from

(4%) in 1998 to 1% in 1999.

Banking Line of B~Lsiness

The Bank’s average outstanding earning assets Of

$359,261,000 increased 9% from $328,605,000 for
1998. Average out.siancling loans grew by 13% in 1999.
The largest dollar increase in average outst.ancling loans
occurred in commercial and industrial loans, up
$17,601,000 or 21% over 1998 average balances.
Commercial mort.gage loans grew by $9,995,000 or 23%
over 1998 average balances, and average outstanding
construction loans rose by $1,833,000 or 14°A over
similar average out,st ancling balances for 1998. Average
outstanding residential mortgage loans grew by
$6,695,000 or 51% in 1999, comparecl to similar
average outstanding balances in 1998. BMT l~ortgage
Company chose t.o hold some of the originate(l residential
mortgage loans in its loan portfolio. offscl. ting Ihese
increases, were decreases in the average outstanding
balances of the Bank’s consumer loan portfolio, down
$4,491,000 or 4% from 1998’s average outstanding
balances. Lower consumer loan demand, caused by
increased cornpetit.ion from aut ornobilc manufacturers for
new automobile loans, was primarily responsible for the
reduction in the percentage of loan growth in Ihe average
outstanding consumer loan portfolio in 1999. The
average outstanding balances of federal funds sold

decreased by 22% in 1999 compared t.o 1998 Ievcls,
partially funding Ihe growth in the loan portfolio.
Average outstanding investments dccrcased by 6% for
1999, compared to 1998.

Average outstanding total deposits increased 9% in 1999,
compared to 1998. The largest dollar increase occurred
in thc Bank’s non-interest. bearing demand deposits and
low costing NOW account. balances, up $9,325,000 or
11 YO and $8,452,000 or 10YO, respectively. Average
money market account. balances incrcascd by $5,546,000
or 13 ‘A. Average outstanding balances of higher costing
certificates of deposit. (“CDs”) grew by $3,497,000 or
6%. Average outst.ancling savings deposits increased 2%
or $722,000. The change in the mix of average
out.stancling deposits, increasing non-interest bearing and
lower cost ing NOW and money market account balances,
at a greater percentage of increase than higher costing
CDs, led to a $119,000 or 2% dccrerrse in inu.crest.
expense and an increase in the net interest margin to

6.12~0 in 1999 from s.gg~. for 1998. An expanded
discussion of net irrt crest incornc follows [Inclcr t hr!
sect.ion cntidcd “lNet. Int.crest Income”.

Exclusive of OREO gains in each period, other income
from the banking segmcni incrcascd by 20% in 1999
compared to 1998. This was duc primarily 10 a 77°/0

increase in other opcrat ing income. During the ~lrst
quarter of 1999, the Bank lcascrl two buildings in llryn
lMawr (the “Buildirlgs”). The 13uilclings arc locaied
clircctly across Lancaster Avenue f’rom the Bank’s main
office and arc to be used for future expansion. Existing
tenants generated $250,000 in rental income, included in
other operating income, account ing for more than onc-
half of the increase in ot hcr opcrat ing incorne, over
1998 lcvCIS.

Total other expenses of the 13arlking line of business
incrcascd 9% in 1999 compared to 1998 levels. Overall,
t.hc Opcr-at,ing profits of t,hc Banking line of business

increased 17% in 1999 comparecl t.o 1998.

[nues[lnent Mcrnr-rgerlterl~an[l Tr[LstLine OJB[Lsinc~ss

The 13arlk’s Invcstmcni Management. and Trusl Division
rcportecl a 13% increase in opcrat ing profit for 1999
compared to 1998 levels. As prcvious[y stated, t hc
Resignations were directly responsible for a $298,000
decrease in fees from Invest rnent Managerncni and Trusi
scrviccs. Total lrrvcst rnent Management and Trust fcc
income rose 6°A in 1999. The rnarkct. valltc of assets
under administration decrcrrscd from $2,101,215,000 at
Deccrnbcr 31, 1998, to $1,887,295,000 as of Dccembcr
31, 1999. Trust asset.s under managemcrrt, incluclcd in
above, dccrcascd from $1,270,3237000 at Dcccrnber 31,
1998 to $1,127,715,000 as of December 31, 1999. The
movement of accounts, caused by Ihe Resignations is
primarily responsible for this clccrease. CDC had assets
under advisement of $295,466,00(1 as of Dcccrnbcr 31,
1999, bringing total invest.ment assci.s under
administrate ion or advisement at l)ecernbcr 31, 1999 to
$2,182,761,000.

Reflecting Ihe effect. of the Resignations, other expenses
of the Investment. Managerncnt and Trust line of business
decreased 1 YO in 1999 over 1998 levels. Salary cxpcnsc
was clown compared to 1998 levels.

Mortgage Banking Line o! Gtlsiness

The operating profit. of the Bank’s ,Mort.gage Banking Iinc
of business decreased 3970 in 1999 compared to 1998.
During 1999, rnort.gage inlcrcst. rates rose enough I.O
make refinancing lCSSattract ivc to borrowers. In 1999,
the iMort.gage Banking line of business had a 4SV0

decrease in the vohrrnc of loans sold in the secondary
mortgage market, partially offset by an 11 basis point
increase in the yield on sales, comparccl to 1998 lCVCIS.
Following is a table showing the volume of residential
mortgage loans origin at ecl and sold in the scconr.lary
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mortgage market., the total net gains realizcfl, and i he
yielcl on these loan sales:

TA131.11 2- Summary of t.oan Sale Activity

(dollars in tkousands) 1999 1998*

Volume of loans sold . . . . . . . . . . . $73,921 $134,676

Loan fees and net gains on
sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 984 1,647

Yield on sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.33% 1.22%

* Ilestal.ecl for comparative purposes.

As of December 31, 1999, the Bank serviced
$283,124,000 in residential mortgage loans for others,
compared to $271,836,000 in loans serviced for ol,hers at.
,year-encl 1998.

Bryn Mcr[ur Bank CorporaLion

The Corporation is a one-bank holding company,
generating intercompany revcmres from the renial Of

Corporation owned properties to the Bank. Exp{:nses are
primarily of an achninistrative nature.

Tax Co{lnsellors oj”Blyn Ma[or, [nc.

In July 1997, the Corporation est.ablishecl a new wholly-
ownecl subsidiary, TC13M, in order to add professional
tax planning to its array of’ financial procluct.s and
services offered to its customers. TC13M employs CPAS
and an attorney (the “Tax Professionals”), having
significant. tax planning, preparation and financial

planning capabilities. As a part. of ihe formation of
TCf3M, a profit. sharing agreement was clevelopecl that
allo~vs the Tax Professionals to retain the net revenues
generated by existing clients brought tO ‘~cBM. For the

second full year of operation, TC13M exceeded the
revenue goals established in the profit sharing agreement,
adrling $5,000 to the Corporation’s net income for 1999,
comparecl to $10,000 for 1998.

Insurance Counselors of Bryn Maujr, Inc.

In January 1998, the Bank established a new wholly-
ownecf subsidiary, ICBM (a full-service insurance
agency), to enable the Bank t.o offer insurance relat ecl
products and services to its customer base. ICBlti offers a
full line of life, property and casualty and commercial
lines to its customer base. For 1999, ICBM reported net
income of $65,000 compared to a loss of $26,000
{or 1998.

B\yn Ma[or Brokerage Coinpany, [nc,

The Corporation established F3MBrokerage in January
1999, in order to make brokerage services available to its
client base through an affiliation with an inclepcnclerlt.
broker-dealer. During its f’irst year of operation, BM
Brokerage report.ecl a net loss of $6,000.

CDC Capital A!ancrgetnerlt, inc.

[n January 1999, the Corporation acquirecl CDC for
$281,000 in Corporation stock, a portion of which was
issuc(l at. the time of’ thc acquisition. The balance of the
shares will be issuec] at the first and second anniversary
of the acquisition. Cooclwill, in t.hc amount of $177,000,
was recorded on the Corporation’s books, to be
arnort izecf over a 1O-year life. CDC was acquirer] to
enable the Corporation to enhance its array of financial
services and prorl[tct.s by offering investment advisory
services to its clients. CDC reported a net profit of
$6,000 for 1999.

.Joscpk ~ Roskos & Co.

On April 1, 1999, the Corporation acquirecl JWll&Co.,
c[fcctivc January 1, 19997 for $47195,000, through a
cornbinat ion of Corporation stock and cash. Goodwill in
the amount of $3,300,000 was rccorclccl on the
Corporation’s books, to be arnort izcd over a 20-year life.
JWll&Co. was acql[ired to cxpancl the products and
services being offered by i.hc Corporation. JIVl{&Co.
provides family business off’ice scrviccs to high-ncl -wori h
indivi(luals, including accounting and tax preparal ion
services, consuli.ing ancl fiduciary support services.
JWl{&Co. reported a net profit of $344,000 in 1999,
before the amortization of $164,000 of goodwill.

Net Interest Income

A 9% or $2,235,000 incrcasc in interesi income,
combined with a 2°/0 or S1 19,000 clecrcasc in intcresi
expense, from year to year, resulied in an overall
incrcasc in net interest. income of 1270 or $2,354,000.

Average earning assets grew 9% in 1999, cornparccl to
1998 levels. l-fighcr yielding average outstanding loan
balances grew by 13%. The average outstanclirlg balances
of.invcstrnents and federal funds sold decreased hy b“~

and 22Y0, respectively. TOtal average cleposits increased
9~0. The largest. increase occurred in the 8ank’s Iowcr

costing average out.st ancling money rnarke[ checking
accounts, up by 130A, foIlowcd by non-interest bearing
[lemancl cleposit.s, up by 11 0/0, while NOW account
balances grew by 10%. Average outstanding savings

cfeposits incrcasccf by 2%. Average outstanding CDs
increased by 60/0 over 1998 lCVCIS.This growth in

average low cost. and non-interest bearing deposits,
compared to a lower growth rate of higher costing CDs,

is primarily responsible for a 22 basis point decrease in
t,hc average cost. of funds for 1999, compared [o 1998.

This clccrcase in the cost of funds was directly
responsible for t.hc 13ank’s net interest. margin, clefincd as
net interest income, exclusive of loan fees, as a
percentage of average earning assets, increasing from
;.gg~. f;r 1998 to ~.12% fo; 1999.
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I
The following table shows an analysis of the composition of nei interest income for each of the last three years. Int crest.
income on loans includes fees on loans of $465,000, $413,000 rrrrd $405,000 in 1999, 1998 and 1997 respectively. The

average loan balances include nonaccrual loalls. All average balarlccs are calculat~d on a ~ailY basis. Yields On
investment securities are not calculat.cd on a t.ax-equivalerrl basis.

TABLE 3- Analyses Of Interest Rates and Interest Differential

1998**

(d<,[l<,rsi,t lIit,usu,tds)

Assets:
Cash and due from banks . . . . .
Interest-bearing deposits with

other banks* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Federal funds sold* . . . . . . . . . . .
Investment securities available

for sale:
Taxable* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Tax-exempt* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total investment securities . . .

Loans* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Less allowance for loan losses

Net loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Uabilities:
Demand deposits, noninterest-

bearing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Savings deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Time deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Short term borrowings . . . . . . . . .
Federal funds purchased . . . . . .
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity . . . . . .

Average
rnterest r{~tes

Aver:lgc locoIncl E:lrncdl
Bal:~ncc EJ;pcllse Pniii

$22,060 $ – —0!0

2,173 103 4.7
127272 609 5.0

30,440 1,698 5.6
4,162 183 4.4

34,602 1,881 5.4

310,214 25,724 8.3
(4,257) — —

305,957 25,724 8.4
21,997 — —

$399,061 $28,317 —

$92,098 $ – —0/0
184,505 2,533 1.4

65,000 3,008 4.6
4,658 266 5.7

954 50 5.2
7,554 — —

354,769 5,857 —
44,292 — —

$399,061 $5,857 –

TotaI earning assets* . . . . . . . $359,261 —
Interest income to earning

assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —

Interest expense to earning
assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..” — —
Net yield on interest-earning

assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —

Average effective rate paidon
interest-bearing liabilities . . . . — —

Net interest margin . . . . . . . . . . . — —

*Indichtes earning assets.
**/~ec[assr~edfol,cotnprrrati[~ep[irposes.

—

7.9

1.6

6.3

2.3
6.12

$19,065 $ – —0/0

1,345 68 5.1
15,665 824 5.3

31,760 1,880 5.9
4,953 224 4.5

36,713 2,104 5.7

274,882 23,085 8.4
(4,088) — —

270,794 23,085 8.5
16,278 — —

$359.860 $26,081 –

$82,773 $ – —70

169,785 2,923 1.7
61,503 3,052 5.0

0 0 0.0
18 1 5.6

5,595 — —

319,674 5,976 —
40,186 — —

$359,860 $5,976 –
$328,605 —

— —

—. —

— —

— —
— —

—

7.9

1.8

6.1

2.6
5.99

1997**

Avc rt!g(:
Int(.rrst aatl!s

A\,(:rtlgr [llC<OII1,I fi2nr11r(ll
r3i11[lnc(. Expense P[li(l

$23,329 $ – —0/0

176 8 4,5
16,964 935 5.5

32,693 1,988 6.1
5,868 283 4.8

38,561 2,271 5.9

259,847 21,746 8.4
(4,247) — —

255,600 21,746 8.5
16,807 — —

$351,437 $24,960 –

$76,076 $ — —70

158,752 3,058 1.9
73,792 3,871 5.2

0 0 0.0
0 6.0

5,55: — —

314,175 6,929 —
37,262 — —

$351,437 $6,929 —

$315,548 —

— —

— —

— —

— —
— —

—

7.9

2.2

5.7

3.0
5.59

I

6



The following table shows the effect of changes in
volumes and rates on interest income and interest
expense. Variances which were not. specifically
attributable to volume or rate were allocat.ecl
proportionately between vohrmc and rate. Interest income
on loans included increases (decreases) in fees on loans
of $52,000 in 1999, $8,000 in 1998, and ($47,000)
in 1997.

TABLE 4- Rate/Volume Analyses

(ia tla,usaads) 1999 VS. 1998

Iarreasr/(dccroa*e) Voluule Rate Total

Interest Income
Interest-bearing

deposits with other
banks . . . . . . . . . . $ 41 ($6)$ 35

Federal funds sold (170) (45) (215)
Investment securities

available for sale
Taxable . . . . . . . . (82) (100) (182)
Tax-exempt . . . . . (36) (5) (41)

Loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,918 (279)’ 2,639

Total interest income 2,671 (435) 2,236

Interest expense
Savings deposits . . . 206 (596) (390)
Time deposits . . . . . 186 (230) (44)
Short term

borrowings . . . . . . 266 0 266
Fed funds purchased 49 0 49

Total interest
expense . . . . . . . . 709 (826) (119)

Interest differential . . . $1,962 $393 $2,355

1998 VS. 1997

Volulnt: Rate T[,ttd

$59$1$60
(75) (36) (111)

(50) (58) (108)
(42) (17) (59)

1,339 0’ 1,339

1,231 (110) 1,121

198 (333) (135)
(665) (154) (819)

00 0
10 1

(466) (487) (953)

$1,697 $377 $2,074

* Incll~cled in lfte Loan rate variance tuas an increase
(decrecrse) in interest incotne related 10 non-pe~ortning
loans of$327,000 and ($230,000) in 1999 and 1998,
respectively. The uaricrnces cl~lelo ra~e incl[lc!e the
effec~ of nonctccrl~al loans beer-r~tseno interes~ is ecrrned
on s[~ch Loans.

The 9% growth in int.eresi income for 1999 was
attributable t.o a 90/0 increase in average earning assets
from $328,605,000 for 1998 to $359,261,000 for 1999.
The yield on average outstanding earning assets

remained level for 1999, compared to 1998, at 7.9°A [or
both periods. The average yield on loans decreased 10
basis points, from 8.4% in 1998 to 8.3% in 1999. The
average yield on federal funds sold decreased 30 basis
points, to 5.0% for 1999, compared to 5.3% for 1998.
The yield on the investment portfolio decreased by 30
basis points from 5.7% in 1998 to 5.4% in 1999. This
was due to the maturity of older, higher yielding
investments in the portfolio.

The growth in interest income at.tribut.able to volume was
the result of a 13°A increase in average outstanding
loans. Partially offset.tiug this increase in the volume
variance was a recluct ion in int crest. income related to the
rat.c variance, due primarily to the 10 basis point.
decrease on the average yield on the loan portfolio.

As ot’ December 31, 1999, outstanding loans increased
21 Y. over December 31, 1998 loan balances. The most
significant loan growth came in commercial and
industrial loans, which grew by 34°h year cnd to year
end. Permanent. mortgage loans, including bet.
commercial mortgage loans and residential mortgage

loans increased by 22Y0. Commercial mortgage loans
grew by 8Y0, while residential mortgage loan balances

increased by 66°A. Constrnct.ion loan outstanding
balances increased 9%. A 3% increase in outstanding
consumer loans is due primarily to a 30/0 increase in
short-term indirect automobile loan balances at year-end

1999 compared t.o year-end 1998.

Average deposits increased $27,542,000 or 9% during
1999. This was due to a continued reaction to banking
consolidations in the Bank’s market. area and the
acquisition of new commercial and trusl. accounts. The
Bank’s average money market rate accounts grew by
1s~., while NOW accounts grew by 10% and non-
intercst bearing demand deposits and average
outstanding savings deposits increased by 110/0 and 2°/0,
respective y. Ci) balances increased by 6 ‘/o. Increasing
lower and no cost. balances were primarily responsible for
the 2% decrease in interest expense for 1999. The cost. of
funds for the Bank averaged 1.7% for 1999 compared to
1.9% for 1998.

Loan Loss Provision

The 13ank provided a loan loss provision of $250,000 [or

1999, compared to $150,000 for 1998. The allowance
for possible loan losses was $4,400,000 and $4,100,000
as ot’ December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.
i]e]inquencies, as a percentage of out.st.anding loans,

amounted t.o 57 basis points and 46 basis points as of
I)ccember 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The ratio of
the loan loss reserve to non-performing loans was 556%
and 832% as of December 31, 1999 and 1998,
respectively. Non-performing loans amount ed to
$792,000 at December 31, 1999, a 61 Yo increase from

$493,000 at December 31, 1998. The primary cause of’
this increase was the reinst.at.emcni of a loan t.o norl-
performing st.at.us that had been included in the Bank’s
OREO at. December 31, 1998. ‘rotal non-performing

assei.s, including 01?1!0, increased by 4% from $764,000
at. Dccembcr 31, 1998, t.o $792,000 at. December 31,

1999. The allowance for possible loan losses, as a
percentage of outstanding loans, was 1.3070 as of
December 31, 1999, compared to 1.46% as of December
31, 1998. Bank management. has determined that the

1999 loan loss provision was sufficient to maintain
an adcquat.e level of the allowance for possible loan
IOSSCSduring 1999.



A summary of’ i.he c}langes in the allowance for possibIe
loan 10SSCSand a breakdown of’ loan loss cxpcricncc by
major loan cat cgory for cac~l of’ tllc past five Years
follows:

TABLE 5- A1lo\vance for Possible Loan Losses

(d<dlarsiIt tht,usa,tds)

Allowance for possible loan
losses

Balance, January l . . . . . . . . . .

Charge-offs

Commercial and industrial

Real estate-construction . . .

Real estate-mortgage. . . . .

Consumer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total charge-offs . . . . . . . . . .

Recoveries

Commercial and industrial

Real estate-construction. . .

Real estate—mortgage . . . . .

Consumer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total recoveries . . . . . . . . .

Net recoveries/
(charge-offs). . . . . . . . . .

Provision for loan losses . . . . .

Balance, December 31 . . . . . . .

Net recoveries/(charge-offs) to
average loans . . . . . . . . . . . .

December31,

1999 1998 1997 ‘1996 1995

$4,100 $4,074 $4,182 $3,652 $3,618

(10) (42) (196) (84) (527)
—. —— —

22 (22) – (4) (8)

(209) (179) (237) (180) (234)

(197) (243) (433) (268) (769)

87 100 102 404 236

118 — — — —
—— — 8 13

44 19 23 36 54

247 119 125 448 303

50 (124) (308) 180 (466)

250 150 200 350 500

$4.400 $4,100 $4,074 :F4,182 $3,652

0.02~0 (0.0570) (0.1270) 0.07% (0.21%)

Tlzenegatr’1’ecilarge-o~ of $22,000 irrrerrles[nte - tnorlg~zge
loans rejlects tile (rddingback [o tke lonn loss reserl~eof an
alnoi~nt i~reljio[ls~clzrrrgedof~ in conjr~nctionu]itk tke
acquisition of other rerd estrrteowned.

TABLE 6- Allocation of Allo}vancc for Possible Loan Losses

The table below allocates the balance of’ the allowance for possible loan Iosscs by loan category and thc corresponding
percent.agc of loans to total loans for each loan category for the last. five years:

Dcccml)er31,
1999 1998 1997 199ri 1995

‘x) ‘x, ‘z, tyo ‘N,
Lomls 1,():111s Lmms 1.01111s Lomls

to to to to
Total T[lt,ll TcIr,Il ‘r(ltld ‘r~)!lll

(dollars ia Ilu>u.saarfs) Loal]s L():IIIs 12(11111s Loittls 1.(11111s

Balance at end of period applicable to
Commercial and industrial . . . . . . . . . $ 151 39.77. $ 427 31 .8% $ 316 28.l% S 483 28.8% $1,295 28.7%
Real estate-construction . . . . . . . . . 33 4.2 81 4.7 1,111 5.1 751 2.9 648 3.8
Real estate--mortgage . . . . . . . . . . . . 228 35.4 161 39.3 184 38.2 289 36.9 259 36.4
Consumer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 279 20.7 301 24.2 465 28.6 609 31.4 619 31.1
Unallocated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,709 — 3,130 — 1,998 — 2,050 — 831 —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,400 100.070 $4,100 100.0% $4,074 1oo.o~o $47182 100.0% $3,652 100.0~0

I

The loan loss reserve allocation reflect.s a rcscrvc based on specific loan loss reserve allocations on loans reviewed
individually as WCI1as an average historical loan write-off percentage for loans in each specific loan category not
individually rcviewecl and is also increased by an additional pcrccntagc to reflect current market conditions. As a part of
the int.crnal loan review process, loans considered impairccl under SFAS NO. 114 are individually reviewed and, when
deemed appropriate, a specific portion of ihc loan loss reserve is allocated to t.hc respective irnpairerl loans.
Refer to page 14 for further discussion of the Corporation’s loan review process.
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Other Income

The following table details other income for the years

ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the percent
change from year to year:

TABLE 7- Other Income

1999 1998 0/0Ctlatlgc

Fees for trust services . . . . . . . . $9,784 $9,272 6%
Service charges on deposit

accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,156 1,169 (l%)
Other fees and service charges 1,333 1,272 s~o

Net gain on sale of loans . . . . . . 1,028 1,682 (39%)
Gain on sale of other real estate

owned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45 224 (80%)
Fees earned from family

business office services . . . . . 1,947 — —
Investment advisory and

brokerage fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,218 — —
Tax consulting fees . . . . . . . . . . . 702 655 7%
Insurance commission income 326 188 i’s~o

Other operating income . . . . . . . 1,071 614 74%

$18,810 $15,076 zs~o

In addition I.o net int.eresi. income, the Bank’s three

operating segments, as well as TCBM, ICBM, BM
Brokerage, CDC and JWR&Co. generate various streams

of’ fec-basecl income, including Investment Management
and Trust income, service charges on deposit accounts,

loan servicing income, consulting fees and gains/losses on
loan sales.

As discussed in the “Lines of Business” section on
pages 3, 4 and 5, the increase in other income in 1999
from 1998 levels was primarily a result of revenues from

newly est.ahlished or acquired lines of business in 1999,
an increase in Investment Management and Trust fees

and rental income received from tile tenants in the
Buildings. These increases were partially offset. lay

decreases in gains on the sale of residential mortgage
loans and a dccrcase in OREO gains, compared to 1998.

Fees from the family office business and investment

advisory and brokerage fees amounted to $3,165,000. No
such fees were earned in 1998.

Trust income grew $512,000 or 6% from year to year.

Refer to the discussion under the heading “Invesirnent
Management and Trusl. Line of Business on page 4 of

this report.

As discussed in the “Mortgage Banking Line of Business”
section, the $654,000 or 39°A decrease in gains on t.!le

sale of loans was directly att.ribut.able to an 45%
dccrcase in the volume of loans sold in 1999 compared

to 1998, partially offset by an 11 basis point. increase in
the yield realized on the sale of loans in 1999 compared

to 1998.

Gains (m the sale of OREO decreased by $179,000 or
8070. This is a direct result of tbc Bank disposing of thc
majority of its OREO prior t.o 1999.

Tax consulting and insurance commission income
increased $47,000 or 7°h and $138,000 or 73°h,
respect.ivcl y.

Other operating income increased $457,000 or 74% in

1999 from 1998 levels, primarily due to new sources of

rental income from the Buildings, adding $250,000 in
new otllcr operating income, not present. in 1998. Fees

from merchant. credit card processing increased by
$92,000 over 1998 lCVCISand cash management related

fec income grew by $65,000. This growth is directly
attributable to growth in the banks off-balance sheet

mutual fund balances, which increased from
$43,007,000 at Dcccmber 31, 1998 to $100,372,000 at

Dcccmbcr 31, 1999. Exclusive of these increased revenue
streams, other operating income increased by $50,000
for 1999, compared to 1998.

Other Expenses

The following table details other expenses for the years
ended I)ecernbcr 31, 1999 and 1998, and the percent.
change from year t.o year:

TABLE 8- Other Expenses

1999 1998 % Clltla:e

Salaries-regular . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12,446 $10,289 2170
Salaries-other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,226 2,375 (6%)
Employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,334 1,908 22%
Occupancy expense . . . . . . . . . . 1,928 1,392 39%
Furniture, fixtures, and

equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,968 1,817 8%
Advertising . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,290 1,283 170
Professional fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,148 811 42%
Computer processing . . . . . . . . . 580 569 (2%)
Merchant credit card processing 524 466 ’12%
Stationery and supplies.. . . . . . . 408 354 15%
Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 373 213 i’syo

Amortization of goodwill . . . . . . . 183 — —
Net cost of operation of other

real estate owned . . . . . . . . . . 8 7 1by.

Other operating expenses . . . . . 3,584 3,211 1270

Total other expenses . . . . . . . . . . $26,980 $24,695 17V0

Ot.hcr expenses increased for the year ended December
31, 1999, by 17% compared to 1998. Regular salaries,
consisting of regular, part time and overtime salary

expense and the largest component. of other expenses,
rose 21 Yo, duc primarily t.o the New Acquisitions in
1999. lZxclusive of regular salary expense from
Brokerage, CDC and JWR&Co., which produced no
expense in 1998, total regular salaries increased by 10OA.

Merit incrcascs and staffing additions, during 1999, are
primarily responsible for t.llis increase. As of

Deccmbcr 31, 1999, the Corporation’s consolidated full-
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time equivalent staffing level was 266.5 compared to
239.5 as of December 31, 1998.

Other salaries, which primarily consist of incentive
compensation, decreased b“h from 1998 to 1999. The

$149,000 decrease was primarily relat.ecl to Investment
Management. and Trust. incentive-based compensation.

Employee benefit. costs increased $426,000 or 22% in
1999 over 1998 levels. Of this increase, $119,000 relates
to the newly acquired or started companies in 1999. A
$158,000 increase in the cost of the Corporation’s
pension expense, along with $76,000 and $45,000

respective increases in the cost of the Bank’s social
security taxes and medical insurance premiums account
for $398,000 of the $426,000 increase. Additional
participants in t.hc pension plan, as well as an increased

staff are the primary reasons for these increased expense
categories.

Occupancy expenses increased $536,000 or 39’% from
1998 t.o 1999. The largest increase relates to occupancy
costs associated with the Buildings, which amounted to

$294,000 for 1999. No such expenses were incurrccl
during 1998. The cost t.o the Bank for use oft he
Buildings in 1999, net of the respective rental income
was $61,000. Increased office rent. expense for
Investment. Counselors of Bryn Mawr, a division of the
invest.ment Management and Trust Division, aunountcd t.o

$38,000, compared to similar rent. expense for 1998, and
occupancy expense associated with the Ncw Acquisitions
amounted to $182,000, accounting for $514,000 of the
$536,000 incrcasc.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment expense increased by

$151,000 or 8% in 1999, comparccl t.o 1998. The rental
of office cquiprnent. increased $46,000, as sornc Bank
dcpariments were relocated, in anticipation of
rcnovat.ions within t.hc main Bank building.

Depreciation expense for the Bank was also up by

$51,000, reflecting the effect of capital improvements
made during 1999. Expenses associated with t.hc New

Acquisitions in 1999 amounted t.o $69,000.

Aclvcrtising rernaincd relatively Ievcl for 1999, compared
t.o 1998, at. $1,290,000 and $1,283,000 for t.hc
respect ive periods.

The cost of merchant crcclit car-cl processing incrcasccl

$68,000 or 15% as the vohunc of merchant processing
increased. These fees were more that offset by rclat.ecl
revenues, included in ot hcr operating income.

The cost of professional fees increased by $337,000 or

42%. The primary reason for this incrcasc was

10

solicitation fees paid for business referrals to CDC in the
rouii ne operation of CDC’S investment. advisory business.
CDC incurred $565,000 in solicitation fees in 1999. No

such fees were incurred during 1998. Exclusive of these
solicitation fees, professional fees decreased by $228,000

or 28y0 for the twelve months ended December 31,
1999, compared t.o the same period in 1998. A recovery

of legal fees in 1999, relat.ecl to a previously charged-off’
loan, was primarily responsible for this decrease in

professional fees.

Stationery and supplies expense increased $54,000 or
15% in 1999, compared to 1998, due primarily t.o

additional costs in 1999, associated with the production
of new product brochures as well as let.tcrhcad for the

ncw subsidiary companies, acquired or established
during 1999.

Insurance expense increased by $160,000 or 75~o.

Insurance expense is composed oft he premiums paid to
The Fccleral Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”)

for deposit insurance, as well as the cost of the
Corporation’s business insurance coverage. FDIC

insurance premiums remained lCVCIfrom 1998 to 1999,
while t.hc Corporation’s business insurance premiums
accounted for the $160,000 incrcasc during 1999,
compared t.o similar premiums in 1998. Expanded policy

Iirnit.s and t.hc addition of’ the Ncw Acquisitions were
responsible for this incrcasc.

Goodwill amounting to $3,477,000 was recorded on ihc
Corporation’s books as a result of the acquisition of CDC
and JWl{&Co. Their respect ivc amortization periods arc

10 and 20 years. T}lc goodwill is being amortized on a
straight -line mcthocl at a cost of $183,000 for 1999. No

such cost was incurred for 1998.

Ot.hcr opcraiing cxpcnscs incroascd $373,000 or 12%

from 1998101999. Irrclorlccl in 1999’s expense were
expenses of the Ncw Acquisitions of $’238,000. Rxclusivc
of t.hcsc expenses, other opcra~ing expenses incrcascd by

q~. over 1998 lCVCIS.

Income Taxes

l~cderal income taxes for 1999 were $3,879,000,

compared to $3,480,000 [or 1.998. This rcprcscnts an
effect.ivc tax rat.c of 32.8°A and 33.7°A for 1999 and

1998, rcspcctivcly. lncorne t.axes for financial reporting
purposes differ from the amount. computed by applying
the stat.ut ory rate to income before t.axes, due primarily
to tax-exempt. income from certain loans and investrncnl
securities. Scc Not.c 10 t.o tbc consolidat.ecl financial
stat.cments.
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FINANCIALCONDI’rION

Investment Securities

Management has elcctecl t.o classify 100yo of the
investment. portfolio as available for sale. There.fore, the
investment porlfolio was carried at its estimated market
value of $29,611,000 and $50,960,000 as of December
31, 1999 and 1998, respect ively. The amortized cost. of
the portfolio as of Deccrnber 31, 1999 was $30,201,000,

result ing in net unrealized losses of $590,000. The
amort.izccl cost. of the portfolio at December 31, 1998

was $50,808,000, resulting in net unrealized gains
of $152,000.

The maturity clist ribut.ion and wcightecl average yields on
a fully Iax-equivalent basis of invesi.ment. securities at
December 31, 1999, are as follows:

TABLE 9- Investment Portfolio

(d{,[[flr.viftIhf,tt.vfl,tfl.s)

Obligations of the U.S.
Government and
agencies:
Book value . . . . . . . .
Weighted average

yield . . . . . . . . . . .
State and political

subdivisions
Bookvalue . . . . . . . .
Weighted average

yield . . . . . . . . . . .
Other investment

securities
Bookvalue . . . . . . . .
Weighted average

yield . . . . . . . . . . .

Total book value . . . . .
Weighted average yield

fihduring Nlaturing
klatrrring from 2001 from 2005
during through ihrou~h hl+ltlLring
2000 2004 2009 after 2009 ‘rotal

$1,993 $22,432 $ — $ — $24,425

6.0% 5.5% — — 5.6%

1,478 1,740 — — 3,218

7.0% 6.3% — — 6.6%

— — — 1,968 1,968

— — — 6.2% 6.2%

$3,471 $24,172 $ – $1,968 $29,611
6.3% 5.6% — 6.2% 5.8%

In addition t.o $57,180,000 in mat.uritics, during 1999,
$6,000,()()0 in municipal bonds were cal]ed. ‘rllesc

increases in available funds, combined with an incrcasc
in total deposits for 1999 of $28,711,000, pari.ially offset.

by net originat ions of the loan portfolio of $21,728,000

prompted Bank management to purchase $42,553,000 in

U.S. Government. or U.S. Covcrnment Agency securities.
Those t ransact.ions were primarily responsible for the

$21,262,000 or 42% decrease in the invest.mel~t portfolio
from December 31, 1998, to I)cccrnber 31, 1999. At

Dcccmbcr 31, 1999, approximately 82~o of the
invest.mcnl. port. [olio consisted of fixccl rate U.S.
Covcrnmcnt and U.S. Government Agency securities. The
Corporation clocs not. own any derivative inst.rumcnts and

does not plan to purchase any of those instrurnent.s in the
foreseeable fuiurc.

Loans

l~or financial reporting purposes, both fixed and floating
rate hornc equity loans, collai.eralized by mort.gages, arc
included in other permanent mort.gage loans. Floating
raie personal lines of credit loans (tile Bank’s
“Credit,Line” product.) are inchlded in consumer loans.

A breakdown of the loan portfolio by major categories at
December 31 for each of the last. five years is as follows:

TABLIi 10- Loan Portfolio

Decemf)er31

(i,tIhr,rt.vtutfl.s) 1999 11)08 I()()7 109(, I go~

Real estate loans
Permanent mortgage

loans . . . . . . . . . . . $134,495 $110,535 $102,474 $ 95,5e6 $65,752
Construction loans 14,396 13,204 13,647 7,639 8,905

Commercial and
industrial loans. . . . . 119,835 89,368 75,474 74,666 67,507

Consumer loans . . . . . 70,211 68,078 76,963 81,512 73,189

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . $338,939 $261,185 $268,558 $259,427 $235,353

“rhe maturity clist.ribution of the loan portfolio, excluding

loans sccurccl by one-family residential property and
consumer loans, at l)cccmber 31, 1999, is shown below.

hl[during
hlaiurirrg from 2001
during through hItituring

(illlltort<vftfffl.s) 2000 2004 t]tter2004 TotId

Commercial,financial,
andagricultural. . . . . . . . . . . . $65,367 $27,308 $27,160 $119,835

Real estat~onstruction . . . . . . 7,858 6,538 2 14,398
Real estata-other . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,817 12,135 40,176 54,128

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $75,042 $45,981 $67,338 $188,361

Interest sensitivity on the
above loans
Loans with

predetermined rates . . . . . . . $6,817 $28,765 $20,767 $58,349
Loans with adjustable or

floating rates . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66,225 17,216 46,571 130,012

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $75,042 $45,981 $67,338 $188,361

Ttlereurer(o.Yctte[[llle[ll~re[~[l>rnent.son t}lelo[lrlsir!clllfle[lin ttie
rru~tllri~)-rlistribll[iorj,s.
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TABLE 11- Loan I>ortfolio and Non-Performing Asset Analysis

(iu thou.9full19)

Real estate loans:
Permanent mortgage loans

Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Home equity . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total permanent mortgage
loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

C;ns~ction mortgage

Residential . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Commercial . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total construction
mortgage loans . . . . . .

Total real estate loans
Commercial and industrial

loans, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total commercial and
industrial loans . . . . . .

Consumer loans:
Direct, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Indirect . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
CreditLine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total consumer loans
Unallocated reserve for loan

loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

J,oan Portfolio

Past Due Past I)uc
30 to 89 90 l)ays ‘rotal

Current Ilays or More Loans

$26,035 $ 258 $6;; $26,334
53,402 54,128
53,797 2: 19 54,033

133,234 522 739 134,495

14,396 - — 14,396
2—— 2

14,398 — — 14,398

147,632 522 739 148,893

119,523 3“12 — 119,835

119,523 3“12 — 119,835

9,162 ‘17 4 9,183
58,438 272 49 58,759

2,253 16 — 2,269

69,853 305 53 70,211

— — — —

$337,008 $1,1{+9 $792 $338,939

Nonpcrforming Assets

Non- Other ‘1’otalNon-
Pcrforming Real Estate Performing

Loans* Otvncd Assets

$41 $– $41
679 — 679

19 — 19

739 — 739

. — —
— — —

— — —

739 — 739

— — .

— — —

4— 4
49 — 49
— — —

53 — 53

— — —

$792 $– $792

Lo:ln Loss
Reserve

Reserve for
Loan Loss
Allocation

$– —
—

228

—
—

33

261

—

151

—
—
—

279

3,709

$4,400

* AlonPeIforlning[oans fl~c [oarss on tl~hich sclzedl~lecl priac~>al ar~d/or irzterest is pas{ due 90 dcs~,s ortttore and[oarrs [ess lhnn 90
dfi~spasl due which csredecttledto beprob[etn [otznsb>-tttarl{tgettlert[.Total rtonpe{forlttitlgloans 0J”$792.000 inc:lt~ctes[Ilc
$792,000 in loans past due 90 days or lnore, on u,hich {:ertain borrou,e,x hrs,epaid irilerestreguhzr~. Tltere are no lorsns[ess lhnn
90 da>~sdelinquent included in nonpetjorlning loans.
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The Bank’s lencling f’unct ion is’ its principal income
generating activity, and it. is the Bank’s policy to
continue to serve the credit needs of its market. area.
Total loans a~ December 31, 1999 increased 21 Yo to
$338,939,000 from $281,185,000 as of December 31,
1998.

The Bank’s commercial and industrial Ien(ling had the
largest. growth in outstanding loan balances from y~ar to
year. Commercial and industrial loan balances grew
$30,467,000 or 34% from $89,368,000 at December 31,
1998 t.o $119,835,000 at December 31, 1999. Increased
business clcvclopment in the Bank’s commercial lending

market area, the addition of experienced commercial
lenders, and the emergence of’ new commercial lending
relationships, partially the result of recent. banking
mergers in the Bank’s market area, are the reasons for
this strong growth.

permanent. mortgage loans, which consist of’ commercial
and residential mortgages as well as home equity loans,
increased by 220/0 or $23,960,000 during 1999, fronl
$110,535,000 at December 31, 1998, to $134,495,000
at December 31, 1999. This growth was clue primarily to
a $10,427,000 or 66°A increase in residential mortgage
loans, as the Bank decided to increase its outstanding
balances of rcsiclcntial mortgage loans. l-Iomc equity
loans increased by $9,561,000 or 21 Yo, commercial
mortgage loans increased by $3,972,000 or 8°h.

Consumer loans, consisting of loans to individuals for
household, automobile, family, and other consumer
needs, as well as purchased indirect. automobile paper
from automobile clcalers in the Bank’s market area,
increased $2,133,000 or 3Y0, from $68,078,000 at.
December 31, 1998, to $70,211,000 at Dccembcr 31,
1999. While average outstanding consumer loan balances
decreased by 4% during 1999, during the later half Of

1999, outstanding indirect automobile paper account.ecl
for the largest increase, growing $1,726,000 or 3% to
$58,758,000 for December 31, 1999 comparetl to
$57,032,000 at. December 31, 1998. Competition from
automobile manufacturers’ credit facilities and lower
costing financing from home equity loans continues to be
a source of major competition for this product.,

As of December 31, 1999, the construction loan portfolio
iucreascd by $1,194,000 or 9~0, from $13,204,000 at
December 31, 1998, to $14,398,000 at December 31,
1999. As of December 31, 1998 and 1999, the
const ruct.ion lending portfolio had neither non-
perforrning loans nor any loans delinquent. 30 days
or more.

Deposits

The Bank attracts deposits from within its market area
by offering various deposit. instruments, including savings

accounts, lNOW accounts, money market accounts, and
certificates of deposit.

Total deposits increased 8% to $371,068,000 at
December 31, 1999, from $342,357,000 at year-end

1998. A more meaningful measure of deposit change is
average daily balances. As illustrated in Table 12,
average daily deposit. balances increased 9°A. [t is
believed that. bank consolidation within the Bank’s
market area, as well as the acquisition of ncw clcposit
accounts through the growth of’ new lending and

investment. ~Managerncnt ancl “rrust. relationships, are
primarily responsible for this growth in deposit.s. AS
previously cliscusscd, this change in the mix of deposits,
growinglolvcrcost,ingand non-int.crest bearing clcposits
is primarily responsible for a 22 basis point clccreasc in
the Bank’s overall cost of funds and a 13 basis point
increase in the Bank’s net, int.crest margin for 1999,
compared to 1998.

The following table presents the average balances of
clcposits and the percent.age change for the years
inclicat.ccl:

TAB1~E 12- Average Daily Balances of Deposits

filf)l[fIr.v io Ihl,tt.vfutfl.x)
Demand deposits, non-

interest-bearing. . . . . . .

Market rete accounts . . . .
NOW accounts . . . . . . . .
Regular savings. . . . . . . .

Timedeposits . . . . . . . . .

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

‘x,c I1Uogt! ‘xlCloolg(!
1999 ] :)1)8 1~[)() ~,. 1008” 1997 I 99}1 \,s. 1997

38,891 3.2

158,752 6.9

73,792 (16.7)

$341,603 $314,061 8.8 $308,620 1.8

$92,096$82,773 11.3% $76,076 8.87.

49,871 44,325 12.5 45,903 (3.4)
93,769 85,317 9.9 73,958 15.4
40,666 40,143 1.8

184,505 189,785 8.7

65,000 61,503 6.7

The following table shows the maturity of ccrtificat.cs of
deposit. of $100,000 or greater as of Dccemhcr 31, 1999:

‘~AB1.E 13- Maturity of Ccriit’icatcs of Dcposiis of
$100,000 or Greater

(itt tltott.vttn(l.v)
Three months or less . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $15,751
Three to six months . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,689
8ixto twelve months . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,833
Greater than twelve months . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $22,273

Capital Adequacy

At December 31, 1999, total sharcholclers’ cquit.y of the
Corporation was $4(>,719,000, a $4,498,000 or 11 Yo

incrcasc over $42,221,000 at December 31, 1998.
~ecrcasing the acldit ion to capital from earnings, less

dividends for the year, was the impact. of Sl~AS No. 115.
As of December 31, 1999, shareholclers’ equity inclurlecl
unrealized Iosscs on investment securities, net 0[ rleferrecl
taxes, of $389,000 compared to unrealkzecl gains on
investment securities, net 0( taxes, of $100,000 at
Deccmbcr 31, 1998. This change causecl a $489,000
clecrease t.o shareholclers’ equity from December 31, 1998
t.o December 31, 1999.

The Corporation and the Bank are required to meet
certain rcgulat.ory capital adequacy guidelines. Under
these guiclelincs, risk- basccl capital ratios measure capital
as a percentage of risk-adjusted assets. Ilisk-acljustcd
assets arc det.erminccl by assigning various weights to all

assets and off-balance sheet arrangements, such as lctt.ers



of credit. and loan comrnit.rnents, based on the
associat.ecl risk.

The Bank’s risk-based capital rai ios at Dcccrnbcr 31,
1999 and 1998 arc Iist.ecl below. These ratios are all in
excess of the minimum required capital ratios, also
listed below.

TABLE 14- Risk-Based Capital Ratios

1999 1998
Minimum l~iaimurn

Actual I{cquircd Act~lal I{c’qliirt’d

Tier I capital ratio . . . . . 10.sdyo 4.00% 12.4Z% d.ol)~o

Total capital ratio . . . . . 11.54 8.00 13.67 8.00

An increase in risk weight.ecl assets at I)ccember 31,
1999, compared t.o last year-end, combined with the
effect of cliviclcncls paid t.o the Corporation during 1999
to fund both the Corporation’s Stock Repurchase
Program and the purchase of JWR&Co. are the primary
reasons for the decreases in both the Bank’s Tier I and
Total Capital ratios from Deccmbcr 31, 1998 to
Deccrnber 31, 1999.

The FDIC has created a statutory framework for capital
requirements that cstablishecl five categories of capital
strength, ranging from a high of “well-capit alizccl” 10 a
low of “critically under capitalized.” As of Dcccrnber 31,
1999 and 1998, the Bank exceeclccl the levels requirccl to
meet. the definition of a “well-capitalizccl” bank.
Management anticipates that the Corporation and the
Bank will continue t.o be in compliance with all capital
requirements and continue to bc classified as “’wcll-
capitalizccl.”

T}le Corporation’s ability to declare dividends in ihc
fut,urc is dcpcnclent on future earnings.

Risk Elements

Risk elements, as clefinccl by the Sccurit ies and Exchange
Commission in its Industry Guide 3, are composed of
four specific categories: (1) nonaccrual, past clue, and
restructured loans, (2) potential problem loans, loans not
included in the first category, but. where information
known by Bank management indicates ihaf the borrower
may not be able to comply with present. payment terms,
(3) foreign loans outstanding, and (4) loan
concentrations. Table 11 presents a summary, by loan
type, of’ the Bank’s nonaccrual and past due loans as of’
December 31, 1999. It is the Bank’s policy to promptly
place non-performing loans on non-accrual status. Bank
management. knows of no outstanding loans that
presently would meet. the criteria for inclusion in the
potential problem loan category, as indicated under
specific category (2) referred to above. The Bank has no
foreign loans, and loan concentrations arc present.ecl in
Table 6. Table 6 presents the percentage of Out.st.ancling
loans, by loan type, comparecl to total loans outstanding
as of December 31, 1999.

Asset Quality

The 13ank is commit tcd to maintaining and clcveloping
quality assets. Loan growth is generated primarily within
i,hc Bank’s rnarkct area, which includes Montgorncry,
Delaware, and Chester Counties, as well as portions of
13ucks and Philarlelphia Counties. The CIevcloprncnt of
quality loan growth is controlled through a lmifornl
Icnding policy that defines the Icncling functions and
goals, loan approval process, lcncling limits, ancl loan
review.

Non-pcrforrning assets arnouniec] to $792,000 at
Dcccmber 31, 1999, a 4% incrcasc from $764,000 at
l)ecernbcr 31, 1998. lNon-perforrning loans were
$792,000 at December 31, 1999, a 01% increase from
$493,000 at Dcccmber 31, 1998. The primary cause of
this increase was the reinst at.crncnt of a loan to non-
performing status t.hai had been incluclccl in ihc 13ank’s
OREO at December 31, 1998. There were no OREO
properties on the Bank’s books as of Deccrnber 31, 1999,
causing a $271,000 clccreasc in OREO balances from
Deccmbcr 31, 1998.

‘~olal nonpcrforrnirrg assets, which include non-accr(lirlg
and past. c1uc loans and other real csi ai.c ownccl, arc
prcscnied in ihc table below for each of ihe five years in
the period ended Deccmbcr 31, 1999.

TABLE 15- Nonpcrforming Assets

Deccrnl)cr 31

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

(in then.rand)
Loans past due 90 days

or more not on
nonaccrual status:
Real estat+mortgage $19$84 $72$ 68$–
Consumer . . . . . . . . . . . 53 56 27 51 155

Loans on which the
accrual of interest has
been discontinued:
Commercial and

industrial . . . . . . . . . . — — 347 76 339
Real estate-mortgage 720 353 723 712 117
Real estate-

construction . . . . . . . . — — — — —

Total nonperforming
loans . . . . . . . . . . . 792 493 1,169 907 611

Other real estate owned
and in-substance
foreclosed
properties* . . . . . . . . . . — 271 25 1,523 3,794

Total nonperforming
assets . . . . . . . . . . $792 $764 $1,194 $2,430 $4,405

All loans pasl clae 90 (icrys or tnore, excepl corwlLrtler
locrns Crnclhot?Leeqwily trtorlgcrge loans, are plcLcecton
noncrccrlLal stallw. SLLCh factors as ~he lype and size of
the loan, the qlLaiily oj’ the colia[eral, CLnclhistorical
creditworthiness of the borrower andor guarantors are
considered by ]ttanagerttent in assessing ~he collec~ihili~y
of slLch loans. Interest joregone on norlaccrtLal stallw
loans was $121,000 for the year en[ied December 31,
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1999. Interest earned and incll~rled in inlcresl incotnc on
these loans prior to their norlpe~brt~lirlg stcrLLLsartzo[~n[crt
to $448,000 in 1999.

* liefer 10 Note 210 ltle corlsolic!aled jinancial
slaletnen[s.

The Bank maintains a Loan Review Committee (the
“Committee”) that periodically reviews t.hc status of all
non-accrual and impaired loans, loans crit.icizcd by both
i.he Bank’s regulators and an independent consultant
retained 10 review both the loan portfolio as well as the
overall adequacy of’ the loan loss reserve. The
methodology used 10 arrive at. an appropriat.c allowance
for loan loss involves a high clegrec of management
judgcrncnt and results in a range of’ estimated 10SSCS.[t is
the goal of this loan loss reserve adequacy process to
provide a loan loss reserve sufficient. to adclrcss t,hc
flank’s potential risk of loan losses, in the existing loan
portfolio, during various economic cycles. During the
review of the loan loss reserve, Ihc Committee considers
allocations of’ the loan loss reserve on specific loans on a
loan-by-loan basis, as WCII as considering inherent loan
losses in specific pools of similar loans, based on prior
historical write-off activii y, geographic concentrations,
industry concentrations and economic factors. The sum
of all analyzed loan components is compared t.o the loan
loss reserve balance, and any adjustmcnis clcemecl
ncccssary to the loan loss reserve balance arc made on a
timely basis.

The Corporation is regulated and periodically inspected
by The Federal Reserve Board. in 1996, the 13ank
became a state member bank of the Federal Reserve
System. The Bank is regulated and periodically cxarninccl

by the Fccleral Reserve 130ard and the Pennsylvania
IIeparirncnl of l~anking. ‘~t]erc arc no recomrncndal ions
by the rcgulaiors, which would have a material effect on
t hc Corporat ion’s Iiquidit y, capiial rcsourccs, or rcsuhs of
opcrat ions.

Asset and Liability Management

Through its Asset/Liability Cornrnittce (“ALCO”) and
the application of Risk l~anagcmcnt Policies and
Procedures, the Bank seeks {o minimize its exposure to
interest. rat.c risk as WCI1as to rnaintaiu sufficient.
liquidily and capital compliance.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The difference between interest. sensitive assets and
int.crest sensitive deposits, stai.ccl in dollars, is referred to
as the inl.crest. rate scnsil.ivity gap. A posil ivc gap is
created when inl.ercst rate sensitive asset.s cxcccd inlcrcsl
rate sensilivc deposits. A positive int.crest rat c scnsit ivc

~aP Wi” Cesu” in a grea’cr Porti~n of assets CornParCcl to
deposits repricing with changes in inlcrcst. rates wil,hin
specified time periods. The opposii c effect rcsull.s from a
negative gap. [n pract.ice, however, there may bc a lag in
repricing some products in comparison to others. A
positive gap in the short.-terrn, 30 days or Icss, in a rising
interest rate cnvironrnent should produce an incrcasc in
net interest. income. rrhc convcrsc is true 0[ a ncgat,ivc
gap in a rising inl.ercsl rat,c environment.

As shown in the following table, the Bank is prcscnily
asset intcrcsi, rate scnsit,ivc in lhc short-term, 30 days or
Icss category.

TABLE 16- Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis as of December 31, 1999

Repricing Periods

o to 30 31 to 90 91 to 180 181 to 365 Over Non-Raic
(tlollurs iu lluIusuufL9) Days Days Days Days 1 Year Sensitive ‘t’otal

Assets:
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks $ 13,643 $ 47$—$—$—$ – $13,690
Federal funds sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,609 — — — 17,609
[nvestment securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

— —

500 — 2,971 24,172 1,968 29,611
Loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 109,2~ 13,365 18,723 33,826 163,819 (4,400) 334,539
Cash anddue from banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 17,914 17,914
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — —

—
— 14,771 14,771

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . &t40,458 $13,912 $18,723 $36,797 $187,991 $30,253 $428,134

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Demand, noninterest-bearing . . . . . . . . . . . . $ –$ –$ – $ –$ — $100,485 $100,485
Savings deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72,772 — 121,286 194,058
Time deposits

—

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,443 9,222 12,0= —23,303 16,187 78,220
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

10,000 — — — 7,884 17,884
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — —

—

37,487 37,487

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity &l 00,215 $9,222 $12,065 $23,303 $137,473 $145,856 $428,134

Gap . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $40,243 $4,690 $6,658
Cumulative gap

$13,494 $50,518 ($1 15,603) –
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $40,243 $44,933 $51,591 $65,085 $115,603 — —

Cumulative earning assets as a ratio of
interest bearing liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140% 141% 142% I bsyo lblyo — —



Tbe Bank uses income simulai.ion models to measure its
interest. rate risk and to manage its interest rate
sensitivity. The simulation models consider not only t hc
impact of changes in interest rates on forecasted net
int,crest income, but also such factors as yield curve
relationships, possible loan prepayments, and deposit,
withdrawals. As of year-end 1999, based on an analysis
of the results from the simulation models, the 13ank’s
int crest rate risk was wit bin the accept.able range as
established by the Bank’s Risk Management Policies and
Procedures.

While future interest rate movements and their effect on’
Bank revenue cannot bc predicicd, there are no trends,
events, or uncertainties of which the Corporation’s
management. is currently aware that, will have, or are
reasonably likely to have, a material effect. on the
Corporation’s liquidity, capital resources, or results of
operations in the fulure.

Liquidity

The Bank’s liquidity is rnaint.ained by marlagi~g its cor~
deposits, purchasing federal funds, selling loans in the
secondary market, and borrowing from t.hc Iredcral
I-Iome Loan Bank of Pit.t.sburgh (t.hc “FI-[L13”).

The Bank’s liquid assets include cash and cash
equivalents as well as certain unpledged investment
securities. Bank management. has developed a liquidity
measure, incorporating its ability to borrow from the
FkIL13 to meet liquidity needs and goals. Peric)dically,
ALCO reviews the Bank’s liquidity needs, incorporating
the ability to borrow from the FI-IL13 and reports t.hesc
findings to the Risk Management Cornrnit.tee of the
Bank’s Board of Directors.

During 1999, cash provided by operations amounted to
$8,157,000 and was primarily derived from net income
of $7,961,000 for 1999. Cash used for investing
activities amounted t.o $38,127,000. Invest.mcnt activity
provided $20,627,000 in cash, as the balarlcc in the
investment portfolio decreased by 42°A at December 31,
1999, compared to Deccrnber 31, 1998. Loan activity,

including the purchase of $33,951,000 in inr.lircct
automobile paper, used $55,679,000 in funds during
1999. The cash portion of t.hc cost of’ acqllirirlg the Ncw
Acquisitions amounted to $1,975,000. The cost of
premises’ improvement.s and the purchase of equipment.
used $1,104,000.

Offsetting the clecreasc in funds from investing act ivitics
was an increase in funds from t hc Bank’s Flnancirlg
activit.its, which provided $33,851,000 in net cash,
primarily the result. of a $14,216,000 net increase in
outstanding non-interest.-bcaring dcmarld arid savirlgs
related deposil.s, along with a $~4,465,000 increase in
time deposit.s. The 13ank also borrowed $10,000,000,
primarily [or liquidity purposes, from the 171-lLB.

l’hc Corporatiorl used $30,000 in rcpayrncnl of its
rnort.gage debt.. The Corporation received $303,000 irl
proceeds from the issuance of common stock, related to
stock option exercises and used $2,530,000 to
repurchase, pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Program,
common stock and $2,603,000 t.o pay the dividend in
1999. The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents
increased from December 31, 1998, to December 31,
1999, by $3,881,000, from $45,332,000 at Dccernbcr
31, 1998 to $49,213,000 at Deccrnher 31, 1999.

01’[-l[tl{

Year 2000

I]uring t.hc past t.~vo years, the Corporation orgarlized a
Year 2000 (“Y2K”) t.earn (the “Team”) io implement a
plan assuring that. all irlt.ernal syst.ems, b~rrowcrs arid
vendors were Y2K compliant.. The Team succcssfull y rnct
its goals. The conversion from 1999 to the year 2000
was an unevcnt.ful onc for the Corporation, its
subsidiaries, as well as its borrowers and vcnclors. With
minor exceptions, all sysiems were properly workirlg at.
the commcnccrncnl of business on ,lanuary 3, 2000.

The cost of Y2K compliance for t hc Corporation
amounted t.o $585,000.

16



1998 vs. 1997 Results of Operations
.1.

Net Income

Nret. income for the year cnclecl I)ecembcr 31, 1998, was

$6,857,000, a 12% increase over net, incornc of’
$6,130,000 for the year ended December 31, 1997. 13asic
earnings pcr share rose from $1.38 in 1997 to$1.58 in
1998. Earnings pcr share-assuming dilution was $1.33
for 1997 comparccl t.o $1.51 in 1998. in 1997, the
Corporation paid dividends of $0.36 per share. in 1998,
the Corporation paid dividends of $().465 pcr share.

Return on average assets was 1.74% for 1997 compared
to 1.91 YO in 1998. Return on average cquit.y was 16.45%

in 1997 versus 17.06°A in 1998.

Net Interest Income

A 4% increase in average earning assets, from 1997 to
1998, was primarily responsible of’ a $1,122,000 or a
4% rise in interest income.

Interest expense decreased 14% or $953,000 from 1997
to 1998. The primary reason for this clecreasc was a
17% ciecrcasc in average out.st.ancling higher costing C[)s.

Net. int,ercst. income increased 12Y0, while the net int.crest,

margin increased from 5.59°A for 1997 to 5.99%
for 1998.

Loan Loss Provision

The provision for loan losses amountccl to $200,000 for

1997 and was clccrcasecl to $150,000 for 1998. The
allowance for possible loan losses as a percent.age of non-

performing loans amounted to 349% and 832% as of
December 31, 1997 and 1998, respectively. The ratio of

the allowance for possible loan losses to total out.st.ancling
loans ivas 1.52% and 1.46% at December 31, 1997 and

1998, respectively.

Other Income

Other income increased 25% in 1998 from 1997 levels.
Fees for Investment Management and Trust services

increased $1,574,000 or 20°A. Net, gains on the sale of
mortgage loans increased $548,000 or 48Y0, clue

primarily to an increase in the sale of residcnt,ial
mortgage loans to the secondary mortgage rnarkct, from

$75,874,000 in 1997 compared to $134,676,000
in 1998.

Other Rxpcnscs

Other expenses increased by $3,858,000 or 19% in 1998
over 1997. l<cgular salaries increased $1,685,000 or

20Y0, clue primarily 10 rncrit incrcascs and slaffing
aclditions, inducting t,hc establishment, of TC13M in ,July

1997 and 1C8M in January 1998. Salaries-ot.her,
prirrrari!y incentive based, increased $720,000 or 44~0.

Increases in inccntivc based compensation, tic(l t.o overall
profii.abilit.y of the flank’s lines 01’business accounted for
this incrcase.

IZmploycc benefit. costs increased by $117,000 or 7%.
I)ecrcascs in the cost of post. -ret.irerncnt. benefit.s of

$242,000 and $170,000 in pension costs were offset by
incrcascs of $398,000, $111,000 and $66,000 in social
security tax cxpcnsc, rrrcclical and life insurance

premiums and lhc Corporation’s supplcrncnt.al employee
rcl.ircrnent plan, rcspcctivcly.

The $252,000 or 16(L increase in furnit,uro, fixt arcs and

cqlriprnent expense was prirnari Iy d{lc t.o the aclclit ional
clcpreciat,ion on fixccl assets.

Aclvcrtising incrcasccl $214,000 or 20Y0, rc[lccting t.hc
cstablishrnent of ncw marketing inii iat ivcs.

Tllc cost of merchant, credit card processing increased

$76,000 or 19%, as the volume of merchant processing
incrcasecl.

Insurance, including t hc Corporat ion’s business coverage

prcrniums and FI)IC clcposil irrs[lrarlce prcrniurns,
increased by $25,000 or 13% in 1998 cornparccl to 1997
Icvcls. FI)IC insurance prcrniums rcrnaincd level from
1997 levels. rrhc cost. of t hc Corporation’s insurance

coverage increased, part ially reflecting the addition of’
TC13M and IC13M in 1998 for a full year.

other operating expenses increased $738,000 or 30~0

from 1997 to 1998. Appraisal f’ces, directly related to the
growth in mortgage banking activity, incrcascd by

$130,000 over 1997 levels. The cost of’ VJK compliance
increased by $79,000 over 1997 and t.ravel and

cnt.ertainrnent expense grew by $70,000.

Income Taxes

The income tax provision for 1998 was $3,480,000, or a
33.7~0 effective rate, compared to $2,950,000, or a
32.5% cf’fective rate, for 1997.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31,

Assets

Cash anddue from hanks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Federal funds sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Investment securities available for sale, at market va[ue

(amortized cost of $30,201,000 and $50,808,000 at December 31, 1999 and ‘
respectively) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Less: Allowance for possible loan Iosscs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Premises and equipment, net.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Accrued interest receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . .

998,
. . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . .

(itl tlt[,ltstlltfl.,)

1999 1998*

$17,914 $ 19,810
13,793 5,166
17,609 20,372

29,611 50,960
338,939 281,185

(4,400) (4,100)
~?,4 con ~’77 nR5. . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . .
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Deferred federal income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other real estate owned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Liabilities
Deposits:

Demand, noninterest-bearing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Savings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Time . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Short termhorrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Commitmentsan dcontingcncies (Note 14)

Shareholders’equity

Common stock, par value $1,
authorized, 25,000,000 shares, issued
5,179,608 shares and 5,067,078 shares
as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively,
and outstanding 4,323,250 shares and
4,303,818 shares asof December31, 1999
and 1998, respectively.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . .

. .

. .
Paid-in capital i~cxces~ ofpar value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Unrealized investment (depreciation) appreciation, net of deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . .
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Less: Common stock intreasury, atcost- 856,358 and 763,260
shares at December 31,1999 and 1998, respectively.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

The accontpanying notes are an integral purtofthe consoliclated jnczncial statenlents,
*ReclassL~etlfor contparaliue pllrposes.

O-r,od 7 4 ( . ,“”!

11,880 12,209
2.411 2,069
3;294 —

1,440 1,086
— 271

4,329 2,812

$436,820 $391,840

$98,790 $88,937
194,057 189,695

78,221 63,725

371,068 342,357
10;000 —

9,033 7,262

390,101 349,619

5,180 5,067
4.467 2,478

(389) 100
45,149 39,791

54,407 47,436

(7,688) (5,215)

46,719 42,221

$436,820 $391,840
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Consolidated Statements of Income

I
I~or the years ended December 31,

Net interest income:
Interest income:

(
interest and fees on loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1
Interest on f’edcral funds sold.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest and dividends on investment securities:

Taxable interest income... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Tax-exempt interest income... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dividend income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Toial interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Loan loss provision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Neiintcrest income af’terloan loss provision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other income:
Foes f’orinvestmentma nagcrncnt and trust serviccs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Service charges on cteposit. accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other fcesand scrvicc charges. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net gain on sale of loans... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Gain on sale ot’otherrcalestatc owned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Fees earned from f’amilybusinesso fficeservices . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Investmentadvisory and brokerage fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Tax consulting fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Insurance commission income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other operating income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total other income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other expenses:
Salaries-rcgu]ar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Salaries-other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Occupancy expcnsc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ,.
Advertising . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Professional fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Computerp recessing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Merchantc reditcardp roccssing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Stationery and supplies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Goodwill amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net cost of’ operation of’ other real estate owned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other operating expanses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total other expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Income before incometaxcs.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Applicable income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Earnings per conunon share. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Earnings per cornmonshare-assuming dilution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

}Veighted-average shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dilutive potential commons hares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Adjusted wcighted-avcrage shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1999 1998’ 1997*

$ 25,724 $ 23,085 $ 21,746
609 824 935

1,702 1,864 1,916
183 224 283

99 85 80

28,317 26,082 24,960
5;857 5;976 ~;929

22,460 20,106 18,031
250 150 200

22,210 19,956 17,831

9,784 9,272 7,698
1,156 1,169 1,124
1,333 1,272 1,090
1,028 1,682 1,134

45 224 379
1,947 — —

1,218 .

702 6& 134
326 188

1,071 614 5G

18,610 15,076 12,086

12,446 10,289 8,604
2,226 2,375 1,655
2,334 1,908 1.791
1;928
1,968
1,290
1,148

560
524
408
373
183

8

;392
,817
;283
811
569
466
354
213

Y

l;~b5
1,565
1,069

822

584
390
322

188

<
3,584 3,211 2,473

28,980 24,695 20837

11,840 10,337 9,080
~ 3879 2,950

$ 7.961 S 6.857 $ 6.130

$ 1.83 $ 1.58 $ 1.40
$ 1.75 $ 1.51 $ 1.33

4,349,403 4,327,297 4,392,162
193,915 225,708 203,660

4,543,318 4,553,005 4,595,822

The acco]npanying no~esare an integral part of[hecortsolida~ec! ~rlarlcialstatettlert~s.
*Reclassl~ieclfor cotnpara[ive pljrposes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

I?or the years ended December 31,

Operating activities:
Nct income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Atljllstments to rcconcilcnct incornetollct cash provided byopcratil]g activilics:

Provision f’or loan losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Provision for rlcprcciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Loans originated t’or resale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Procceds from sale of loaIls . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net gai[lon sale of loans.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
lNctgaill otldis[~osal ofotller real cstatc owned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Provision for rlef’errcdincomc taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Change in income taxes [Jayable/ref{Illdablc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cllarlgc ill accl[lcdi lltercstlcceivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Clla[lge i]laccrlled illtcrcst payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Nctcashp rovidcdbyoperating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investing activities:
P[lrchases of invcstmellt scc~lritics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Proceeds from mat{~rities ofinvestrnellt secltritics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Procccclsfromsalcs o[investment secl~rities availablct’orsalc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Proccecls from calls ofillvestmeot scc[lritics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Procceds ondispositioll of otllerrealestatc owllecl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Pllrchase of otllerreal cstateowncd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Capitalizationof costs of other real cstateowncd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
lNct.Ioan(originations) repayments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Pllrchase ofalltomobilc retail il]stallmcl]t contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cost of acqltirillg llew’stlbsidiarics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
P[lrchascso fprcmisesa ll(leqllipmcnt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net casllllscrl ill illvestiilg activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Financing activities:

Cllallgc ill dcmalld all(lsavillgs deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Changcin time deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dividends paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Repayment of mortgage debt.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Proceeds from issllanccot’ common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Procccds from borrowed f[mds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Pllrcllasc of trcasllry stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net cashprovidcdb yfinancing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Change in caslland cash cq{rivalc!lts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Caslland cash cquivalclltsat beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Caslland cash eq{livalents atend of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid d~[ring the year for:

Incomctaxe s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Non-cash investing activities:
Common stock isslled for b(lsiness acquisition:

Joseph lV. Roskos& Comparly . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
CDCCapital Management, hlc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1999 1998* 1997*

$7,961 $ 6,857 $6,130

250
1,319

(75,502)
74,505
(1,028)

(45)
,(:;~)

!;;;)

150
1,333

(;:;,~;)

(’1:682)
(224)

(20)
(405)
~;;)

200
1,091

(g,jfi)

{509)
(:;;)

lx
(345)

(567) 496 1;485’

8,157 10,001 5,459

(~,~o) (;:,::;) (;:,:::)

3 ,
— ‘ 27

6,0& 15,002 8,955
45 249 1,879

(271)
(z) – 26 q~)

(21,728) 10,954
(33,951) (26,206) (32;859)

(;,;::) – –
(1,737) (1,542)

(38:127) (27,277) (11,893)

14,216 11,705 22,622
14,495 1,846 3,001
(2,603) (2,012) (1,583)

(30) (26) (1,;:;)
303 432

10,000
(2,530) (2,5~) (1,3;)

33,851 9,426 21,16Z

3,881 j;,f3:) 14,728
45,332 38,454

$49:213 $45:332 $53.182

$2,300 $ 3,861 $2,153
5,734 5,827 6,955

$2,000 — —
281 — —

Thc?accortzpanying notes are an integral part oflheconsoli[iated jirtancial statettterlts.
*Rec[asslJ~e<[jbr col?lparczlivc?pltrposes.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ E~ity

(in tltt~u.vnnti.v,except filr .vllnre.voj cotntnon stock)

l~or the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997

Balancc, Deccmber 31,1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dividcncls declared, $0.’72 per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Changci nunrealizecl gains (losses), nct of income
taxes of $32,000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Purchase oft reasurystock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Retirerncn to ftreasurystock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Common stock issued. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Balance, December 31,1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net. income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Diviclcncls cleclared, $O.465persharc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Change in unrealizedgairls (losses), nct ofincornc
t.axesof $52,000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2-for-l stock split . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Tax benefit from gains onsiock opt.iorlexcrcisc . . . . . .
Purchase of t.reasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Retirement of ireasury siock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cornrnon st.ock issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

BaIance, Decembcr 31,1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dividends declared, $().60 persharc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Change in unrealized gains (Bosses), nctofincorne
taxes of ($252,000) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Tax benefit. from gains onst.ock option cxcrcise . . . . . .

Purchase of treasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Retircrnen to ftreasur ystock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Common stockissuecl. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

13a1ance, December 31,1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Shares of Unrealized
Common Common Paid-in Ilctaincd Gains Treasury

Stock issued stock Capital Earnings (Losses) stock

2,503,885 $2,504 $4,445 $30,399 ($ 1) ($1,539)
— — — 6,130 — —
— — – (1,583) – –

— — — — 63
– (1,3;)

(2,0;) $ (;) = – 101

17,500 243 — — —

2,519,379 2,519 4,589 34,946 62 (2,767)
— — — 6,857 — —
— — – (2,012) – –

— 38 —

2,525,339 — ; = _ _2,525 (2,525)
— — 173 — —

– (2,5;)

(5,7;) ~) (1=) = – 71
28,100 28 404 — — —

5,067,078 5,067 2,478 39,791 100 (5;215)
— — — 7,961 — —
— — – (2,603) – –

— — — — (489) –
— — 213 — —

– (2,5;)

(11,0;) (;) (2;) = – 57
123,589 124 2,017 — — —

5,179,608 $5,180 $4,467 $45,149 ($389) ($7,688)

The accontparlying no~esare anintegrai part oftlleconso[idat[td financial sta~enterlts.



Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(in tllousunds)

For the years ended December 31,

Nct income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Ot,hercomprehensivc income:

Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising chlring the pcriocl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Deferred income tax benefit. (expense) on unrealized holding gairrs (1OSSCS)
arising cluring t.hcperiocl. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Comprehensive net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

‘1’heacco]npanying no~esare aninlegral partt~[~lecorls{~lidaled Financial skatetnen!s.
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1999 1998 “ 1997

$7,961 $6,857 $6,130

(741) 59 94

252 (21) (31 )

$7,472 $6,895 $6,193



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Basis of Presentation:

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation (the

“Corporation”), The 13r-ynMawr Trust. Company (the
“Bank”), Tax Counselors of’ Bryn Mawr Inc. (“TCBM”)7

Insurance Counselors of Bryn Mawr, Inc. (“ICBM”),
Bryn Mawr 13rokerage Company, Inc. (“BM Brokerage”),
CDC Capital LManagemcnt, Inc. (“CDC”) and .Joseph W.
Roskos & Co. (“JWR&Co.”). For all years prcsentecl, all

acljust.ing entries required for the fair presentation of the

financial statements were made. All such adjustments

were of a normal recurring nature. All significant,
intercompany transactions and accounts have been
eliminated [Ipon consolidation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accounting policies of the Corporation conform to
CAAP and to general practices of’ the banking industry.
The significant accounting policies arc as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from
banks, federal funds sold, and interest-bearing deposits

wit h other banks with original rnat.urities of threc months
or less. Cash balances reserved to meet regulatory

requirements of the Federal Reserve Board amounted to
$3,106,000 and $4,909,000 at December 31, 1999 and

1998, respectively.

Investment securities:

iManagement categorized all of its investment. securities as

available for sale as part, of’ its asset/liabilit,y management
strateb~ since they may be sold in response t.o changes in

interest rates, prepayments, and similar factors.
Invcstrnent.s in this classification are reported at, the

current. market value with net. unrealized gains or losses,
net of the applicable deferred tax effect,, being added t:o

or deducted from the Corporation’s total shareholders’
equity on the balance sheet. As of December 31, 1999,
shareholders’ cquit y was decreased by $389,000 due to
unrealized losses (net of $201,000 in deferred income tax

benefits) of $590,000 in the investment securities
portfolio. As of December 31, 1998, shareholders’ equity
was increased by $100,000 clue to unrealized gains (net
of $52,000 in deferred income taxes) of $152,000 in t.hc
investment. securities portfolio.

[.oans:

[nterest incornc on loans performing satisfactorily y is
recognized on the accrual method of accouni,ing. Non-

pcrforrning loans arc loans on which scheduled principal
ancl/or inl,erest is past. due 90 clays or more or loans less

than 90 days past due which arc cfccrncrl t.o bc problcrn
loans by management.. All non-performing loans, except
consumer loans, are placed on non-accrual status, and
any outstanding interest rcccivablc at the time the loan is

deemed non-performing is deducted from int.ercst,
income. Consumer loan principal and interest balances

deemed uncollectable arc charged off on a t.imcly basis
againstthe loan loss reserve. The charge-off policy for all

loans, including non-performing and impaired loans,
considers such factors as the type and size of the loan,

the quality of i,he collateral, and historical
creditworthiness of the borrower.

As a part of its internal loan review process,
management., when considcri ng making a loan an
irnpairer.f loan, considers a nurnher of factors, such as a

borrower’s current financial strength, the value of related
collat.cral and the ability to continue to meet the original
contractual terms of a loan. Major risk classifications,
used to aggregat.c loans incluclc hot h credit risk or the

risk of failure to repay a loan and conceni ration risk. A
loan is not, considered impaired if there is merely an

insignificant. delay or shortfall in the arnount.s of
payments. An insignificant delay or shortfall is a
temporary delay in t,hc payment. process of a loan.
f-lowcver, under these circumstances, the Bank expects I,o

collect. all amounts clue, including interest. accruccf at the
contractual interest rat.c for t,hc period of the delay.

When a borrower is deemed lo bc unable to meet the

original terms of a loan, the loan is considered impaired.
While all impaired loans are not necessarily considered

non-performing loans, if a loan is delinquent, [or 90 clays
or rnorc, it. is considered both a non-performing and

impaired loan. All of the Corporation’s impaired loans,
which amounted to $720,000 and $1,718,000 at
I)ecernber 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively, were pu{ on
a non-accrual basis and any outstanding accrued interest

receivable on such loans, at. the t,irnc they were put on a
non-accrual status, was reversed from income. [rnpaired
loans are required to be measured based upon the
present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at
the loan’s initial effective interest. rate or at the loan’s

market price or fair value of the collateral, if t,hc loan is
collateral dependent. As of December 31, 1999 and

1998, no impaired loans were mcasurecl using the
present. value of expect.ecf future cash flows or at the
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loan’s market price. Impaired loans measured by the fair
value of the loan’s collateral amounted t.u $720,000 and

$1,718,000, respectively. [f’ the loan valuation is Icss
than the rccorclccl value of t.hc loan, an impairment.

reserve is established for the cliff’crcncc. As of Dcccmbcr
31, 1999 and 1998, there were $679,000 and $935,000,
respectively, of impaired loans for which ihcrc is a
related allowance for loan 10SSCS.The total rclatccl
allowance for loan loss on impairccl loans at. December
31, 1999 and 1998 was $110,000 and $300,000,
respectively. Impaired loans for which no loan loss

allowance was allocated amounted t.o $41,000 and
$783,000 at Dcccmbcr 31, 1999 and 1998. Average
impaired loans during both 1999 and 1998 amounted to

$1,088,000 and $2,820,000, rcspcciively.

When a loan is classified as impaired, il. is put on norl-
accrual status and any income subsequently collectcrl is

credited to the outst.ancling principal balance. Thcrcforc,
no interest income was reported on outstanding loans

while consiclerccl impaired in either 1999 or 1998. Loans
may be rcmovccl from impaired status and rclurncd to
accrual status when all principal and interest arnou nts

cent.ract.ually clue arc reasonably assured of repayment
within an accept.able period of t.irnc and tl]crc is a
sustained period of repayment performance by the

borrower, with a minimum repayment of at least six

months, in accordance with the contractual Ierms of
interest and principal. Subsequent income rccognit.ion

would be rccorclecl under i.he existing t.crms of the loan.
Basccl on the above crit.cria, $1,283,000 in loan balances

were removccl from impairccl status and ret.urnecl to
accrual status during 1999, while no loans considered

impaired were rcrnovecl from impaired status
during 1998.

Smaller balance, homogeneous loans, exclusively
consumer loans, when included in non-performing loans,
for practical consiclerat.ion, are not put on a non-accrual
status nor is the current accrued inlerest receivable
revcrsccl from income. Once clccmed uncollectable, t.hesc

outstanding loan and accurnulai ecl interesi balances
arc charged off through the loan 10SS reserve, On a

timely basis.

Loan loss provision:

The loan loss provision chargccl to operating expenses is
based on those factors which, in management’s

judgement, deserve current rccognit.ion in estimating
possible loan losses including the continuing evaluation

of the loan portfolio and the Bank’s past. loan loss
experience. The allowance for possible loan 10SSCSis an

amount. that management. believes will be aclcquat.e to
absorb losses inherent in existing loans.

Other real estate o~vncd:

Other real cst.at.c owned (“01 ;110”) consists of propcrt ics
acquircc] by foreclosu rc. These asset.s arc carried at the
lower of cost or cstirnatcd [air value al the tirnc t-he loan
is forcclosccl Icss cstirnated cost. to SCII. The amounts

recoverable from ORIiO COUICIcliff’cr materially from t hc
amounts used in arriving at. t.hc net carrying value of the

assets because of future market f’actors beyond the
control of t.hc Bank. Costs to improve the property arc

capitalized, whereas costs of holding the property arc
chargccl to expense.

Deferred loan fees:

The 13arlk dcf’crs all loan fees and rclat.ccl direct loan
origination costs. Dcfcrrcd loan fees and costs arc

generally capitalized and arnort izccl as yiclcl acljustrncnt

over the life of the loan using the interest rnct.hocl.

Prcrniscs and equipmcnti

Prcrniscs and cquiprncnt arc stated at cost., less

accurnulat.cd depreciation. The provision for cleprcciat ion
is cornputccl on a st.raight-line basis over the estimated
uscf’ul Iivcs, as follows: prcnlises—10 to 50 years, and
cquiprncnt-3 to 20 years. I.caschold improvement.s arc

amortized over t hc shorter of the cstirnat.ed usef’ul Ii(C or
t.hc t.crm of t hc Icase. lMaintcrlancc and repairs arc
chargccl I.o expense; major renewals and bet tcr-rncnts arc
capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions arc rcflcctecl
in cu rrcnt. operations.

Income taxes:

‘The Corporation files a consolidat.ccl Federal income tax
ret.urn with its subsidiaries. Certain items of income ancl

cxpcnsc (primarily loan origination fees, provision for
loan loss and other real cst.at.c owned 10SSCS)arc rcportecl
in c1iffcrcnt periods [or tax purposos. Deferred taxes are
proviclccl on such t.crnporary rliffcrcnccs exist.ing bet.wecn
financial and income tax rcporiing, subject. to t.hc
cleferrccl tax asset realization criteria rcquirccl unrlcr
Stat.cment of l~inancial Accounting Standards No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”).

Trust income:

Trust. Division income is recognized on the cash basis of

accounting. Reporting such income on a cash basis clocs
not materially affect net income.

Goodwill:

‘rhe cxccss of cost. over fair market, vahrc of net assets

acquired through the purchase method of accounting
(Goodwill) is being amortized on a straight-line basis
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over the period of the expected benefit, which ranges
from 10 t.o 20 years. It is Corporation policy that, if any

expect.ecl benefit. from an acquisition becomes impaired,
the respective goodwill amount will be charged-off in the

period of impairment.

Recently issued accounting standards:

In June 1998, Statement, of ITinancial Accounting
Standard No. 133 “Accounting for Derivat.ivc

Instruments and FIedging Activities” (SFAS No. 133)
was issued and subsequently amended by Statement. of

Financial Accounting Standard No. 137 “Accouni.ing of
Derivative Instruments and lIeclging Activities-Deferral

of the effective date of FASB st.at.ement No. 133”
(“SFAS No. 137”).

SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting

standards for derivative instruments and for hedgi~g
activities. SFAS No. 133 as amcndccl by SEAS No. 137

is effective for all fiscal quarters begiming after June 15,
2000. The Corporation does not. own any derivative

instruments and CIOCSnot engage in hedging activities.
These s~.at.cment.s will nol have a material impact on ihe

financial condition or results of operations of the
Corporation.

3. Investment Securities:

The amorttizecl cost and estimrrt.ed market value of

investments, all of which were classified as available for
sale, arc as follows:

(i,, thuwaltds)

Obligations of the U.S.
Government and
agencies . . . . . . . . . . .

State and political
subdivisions . . . . . . . .

Other securities . . . . . . .

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

As of Dccc~ubcr :11, 1999:

Cross Cross Estiluotc(l
A1nortizcd U1lrctllizcd Unrci~lizc(l Ntarkci

cost Gaius Losses Voklc

$25,017 $— $593 $24,424

3,230 4 15 3,219
1,954 14 — 1,968

$30,201 $18 $608 $29,611

As of Ocecu]bcr 31.1998:

At December 31, 1999, securities having a book value of
$10,525,000 were pledged as collateral for public funds,
trust deposits, and other purposes.

The amortized cost and estimated market. value of

invest.meni securities at. December 31, 1999, by
contract ual maturity, arc shown below. Expcctccl
maturities will differ from contractual rnat.urities because

borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligai.ions with or without call or p repa yrrumt penalties.

1999

Estillluk?d
Alnortizc(l Nlarkct

(i,, tIuIu.suIuls) cost value

Dueinone yearor less . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,475 $3,471
Due after one year through five years . . . . . 24,772 24,172
Due after five years through ten years . . . . . — —
Dueafter ten years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —

Other securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,954 1,966

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $30,201 $29,611

There }vcrc no sales of debt sccurit ics during 1999, 1998
or 1997.

4. Loans:

Loans outstanding at December 31 arc detailed by
category as follows:

Real estate loans:
Permanent mortgage loans . . . . . . . . . . . .
Construction loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Commercial and industrial loans . . . . . . . . . .
Loans to individuals for household, family,

and other consumer expenditures . . . . . . .

Subtotal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Less Allowance for loan losses . . . . . . . . . . .

Netdeferred loan fees . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Unadvanced loan funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans with predetermined rates . . . . . . . . . . .
Loans with adjustable or floating rates . . . . .

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1999 1998

$134,960
14,496

119,835

70,211

339,502
(4,400)

[563)

$110,963
13,295
89,368

68,078

281,704
(4,100)

(519)

$334,539 $277,085

$113,682 $85,775

187,413 165,468
151,526 115,717

$338,939 $281,185

Cross Cross Ilstilnntcd
A1oortized U[lrcalizc(l Ullrc:llizcd Nklrkct All loans past due 90 days or more, cxccpt consurncr

(ill Ihf,wattds) cost Gains Losses V:lluc loans, arc placccl on nonaccrual status. Nonperforrning

Obligations of the U.S. loans amounted to $792,000 and $493,000 at Dcccrnbcr
Government and 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Forgone inierest on
agencies . . . . . . . . . . . $44,838 $99 $26 $44,911

State and political
nonaccraal loans was $121,000, $230,000, and

$298,000 in 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively. During
subdivisions . . . . . . . . 4,612 62 — 4,674

Other securities . . . . . . . 1,358 17 — 1,375 1999, four loans, previously classified as impaired, were

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $50,808 $178 $26 $50,960
returned t.o performing status, adding $448,000 in
int.ercst. income in 1999.
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5. Allowance for Possible I~oan I~osses:

The summary of the changes in i he allowance :~or

possible loan losses is as follotvs:

7. Deposits:

Following is a summary of deposits as of Dcccrnbcr 31:

1999 1998

(itt thouma,tds) 1999 ~998 1997

Balance, January 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,100 $4,C174 $4,182
Charge-o ffs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (197) (243) (433)
Recoveries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 247 119 125

Net recoveries / (charge-offs). . . . . . . 50 (124) (308)

Loan loss provision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 250 150 200

Balance, December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,400 $4,100 $4,074

6. Premises and Equipmcnti

A summary of’ premises and equipment, at I)ccemhcr 31,
is as follows:

([u lhou.sauds) 1999 1998*

Land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,973 $2,973

Buildings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,439 11,407
Furnitureand equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,484 10,362
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 494 389

26,390 25.131
Less accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14;510 12;922

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,880 $12,209

*Reclassi ficd for comparat.ivc purposes.

Depreciation expense for the years cndecl Deccmhcr 31,

1999, 1998 and 1997 amounted t.o $1,285,000,
$1,221,000 and $988,000, respectively. l~uturc minimum

rent commitments (in thousands) under the opcrat,ing
lease is as follows:

2000 ........................... $ 223,200
2001 ........................... 223,200
2002 ........................... 223,200
2003 ........................... 223,200
2004 ........................... 247,872
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,215,693

The Icasc contains options to cxtencl for onc 10 year

period. The cost of’ such rentals is not included in the
above. Total rent. expense for the year endccl
Dccembcr 31, 1999, amounted to $186,000. There was
no such rental expense in 1998 and 1997.

As of Dcccmber 31, 1999, t.hc Corporation has
borrowings outstanding of $638,000. The borrowings arc
collateralized by a properi.y with a book value of
$1,651,000. The wcightccl average interest rate on the
borrowings was 8.50% and 8.50% in 1999 and 1998,

respectively.

Regular savings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
NOW accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Money market accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Time deposits (less than $100,000) . . . . . . .
Time deposits, $100,000 or more . . . . . . . . .

Total interest-bearing deposits . . . . . . . . . .
Non-interest-bearing deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$43,186 $40,307
98,834 101,226
52,037 48,162
55,947 47,201
22,274 16,524

272,278 253,420
98,790 88,937

$371,068 $342,357

The aggregate amount. of deposit overdrafts included as
loans as of Dcccmbcr 31, 1999 and 1998 were $37,000

and $161,000, respectively.

l~aturity of certificates of deposit:

$100,000 Less tlltlll
hlaiuring duriny or Inorc $100,000”
2000 ............................ $20,560 $41,473
2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,714 12,842
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,058
2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 334
2004 and thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 240

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $22,274 $55,947

8. Short Term Borrowings:

The 13ank bad outstanding short term borrowings from
t.hc Federal I-Iome l~oan 13ank of Pittsburgh of

$10,000,000 as of Deccmbcr 31, 1999 with an interest
rate of 5.860A, maturing in January, 2000. NTOsuch

borrowings were out.sianding as of l)eccmber 31, 1998.

9. Disclosure About Pair Value of I~inancial
Instruments:

St at.cmcnt of Financial Accounting Stanclarcls No. 107,

“Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial lust rumcnts”
(“SFAS No. 107”), requires disclosure of the fair value

information about financial instruments, whether or not
recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is
pract.icablc 10 cst irnate such value. In cases where quoted

market prices arc not available, fair values are based on
est.imat.es using present. vahrc or ot hcr market, value
techniques. Those t.echniqucs arc significant Iy affect ccl by
the assurnpt,ions used, including t.hc discount, rat,c and

esl.imales of future cash flows. In that. regard t hc dcrivccl
fair value cst.irnai.es cannot be substantiated by
comparison to irlclcpcndcnt, market.s and, in many cases,
could not. bc rcalizccl in irnmecliat,e settlement of t,hc
inst.rurncnt.. Sl~AS hro. 107 excludes certain financial
instru rncnts and all non-financial instruments from its
disc]osurc rcquircmcnt.s. Accordingly, the aggregate fair
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value amounts prcscniecl do not represent the Ilndcrlying
value of’ the Corporation.

‘f’hc following mcthorls and assumptions were USCCIto
estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to cstimat.c
that value:

Cash and cash equivalents:

The carrying amounts report.ccl in the balance sheet, for
cash and cash cquivalcnt,s approximate their fair values.

Investment securities:

Estirnatecl fair values for investment securities arc based
on quoted market, prices, where available.

Loans:

For variable rat.c loans that. rcpricc f’rcqucntly and which
have no significant change in crcclit, risk, csi.imatcd f’air

values arc based on carrying values. Fair values of
certain mort.gage loans and consumer loans arc estimal.ed

using cliscountcd cash flow analyses, using interesl. raics

current,[y being offered for loans with similar t.crms to
borrowers of similar credit. quality. The cst.imat.cd fair

value of nonperforrning loans is basccl on discounted
cst.iruat.ecl cash flows as dctcrrninecl by the internal loan

review of i,hc 13ank or the appraised rnarkct value of
the unrlcrlying collateral, as dct.crmincd by indcpcncicnt,
third party appraisers.

I)eposits:

The cst.imatecl fair valllcs clisclosccl for nonir]tcrcst,-
bcaring clcrnand deposits, NOW accounts, and Market

l{atc and Market I{at:e Checking accounts arc, by
rlcfinit.ion, equal to the arnount.s payable on dcmancl at,

the rcpori.ing date (i.e., their carrying arnount.s). Fair
vahrcs for ccrti ficatcs of dcpos it arc esiimat.cd using a
cliscount.ccl cash flow calculation that applies inlcrcst
rat.cs current] y being o f[crcd on ccrti ficat.cs t.o a schcdLI [c

of cxpectccl rnont.hly mat.llritics on t.hc ccri.i(icalc O(
clcposii. SFAS No. 107 clc~incs ihe fair value of dcrnan{l

clcposits as t.hc amount. payable on clcrnancl and prohibits
adjusting cstirnatccl fair value from any value clcrivcd

from retaining those deposits for an cxpccled f[]turc
period of time.

Short Term 130rro}vings:

l)uc to the short term nature of t,hc rnat.urit.ics the
carrying amount. of t.hc borrowings approximat.cs t.hc
fair value.

Other liabilities:

Estimat.cd fair values of long term mortgages,

collat.cralizecl by one properly incluclccl in premises and

equipment, arc based on cliscountcd cash flow analyses,

using intcrcsl. rat.cs current.1 y being offcrecl for similar

types of loans and amortizing the loan under existing

arnort,tization tables for each loan.

Off-balance sheet instruments:

Est.imat.ed fair values of the Corporation’s off-balance

shcei. instruments (st.anclby let.t.crs of credit and loan

comrnit,mcnt.s) arc based on f’ccs currently chargccl to

enter into similar loan agreements, taking int,o account,

i.hc remaining tcrrns of the agrccmcnt.s and the

count.erpart.ics’ crcclit standing. Since fees and rates

chargccl for of(-balance sheet, it.crns arc at market levels

when set,, there is no rnat.trial cli[fcrcncc bet.wccn t,hc

stated arno(lnt and cstimatecl [air values 0[ off-balance

sheet, instruments.

The carrying amount and cst imatcd fair value of the

Corporation’s financial inst.rumcnts al I)cccrnbcr 31 arc

as follows:

(iu lIuIu8aIuis)

Financial assets:

Cash and due from
banks . . . . . . . . . .

Interest-bearing
deposits with
other banks. . . . .

Federal funds sold
Investment

securities. . . . . . .
Netloans . . . . . . . .

1999 1098
Estiill:lte(i

C:lrryillg l~:lir (:fir~illg llstill)ittt:(l
AIIIOIIIIt V;lIUC AIII{}IIIII I;[lir VIIIIII.

$17,914 $17,914 $ 19,810 $ 19,810

13,690 13,690 5,151 5,151

17,609 17,609 20,372 20,372

29,714 29,714 50,976 50,976
334.539 337.071 277.085 283,265

Total financial
assets . . . . . . . $413,466 $415,998 $373,394 $379,574

Financial liabilities:
Deposits . . . . . . . . . $371,066 $370,704 $342,357 $342,465
Short term

borrowings . . . . . 10,000 10,000 — —
Other liabilities . . . . 636 638 668 708

Tobl financial
liabilities . . . . . . $381,708 $381,342 $343,025 $343,173

Off-balance sheet
instruments . . . . . . $121,664 $121,564 $92,920 $92,920
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10. Applicable Federal Income Taxes:

The components of the nei deferred tax asset as of
l)ecembe~ 31 are as follows:

(i,t lhf,usaltrf..)

Deferred tax assets
Loan loss reserve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Pension and other postretirement benefits . . . .
Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Unrealized depreciation on investment

securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Unrealized appreciation on investment

securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total netdeferred taxassets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1999 1998

$ 790 $ 722
:307 281
257 273
138 251

201 —

1,693 1,527

(253) (389)

— (52)

$1,440 $1,086

No valuation allowance was recorded as of December 31,
1999 and 1998.

The provisions for federal income taxes consist of the
following:

(it, lh[IusaIIds) 1999 1998 1997

Currently payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,076 $3,286 $2,756
Deferred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (197) 194 194

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,879 $3,480 $2,950

Applicable federal income taxes cliffcred from the amount
derived by applying the statutory federal tax rate i.o
income as follows:

(i,t lhl,usu,tds)

Tax ej(pense at statutory rate . . . . . . . .
Benefit reductions in taxes resulting

from tax-exempt income . . . . . . . . . . .
Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Actual taxexpense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1999 1998 1997

$4,026 $3,515 $3,087

(164) (334) (113)
17 299 (24)

$3,879 $3,480 $2,950
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11. Pension and Other I>ostretiremcnt Benefits

The Corporation sponsors t~vo pension plans and a post.retirement benefit plan for certain of its employees.

The follo~ving tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefits obligation and fair value of assets over
the t~vo- year period ending December 31, 1999, and a statcrncnt. of funclcd st.at.us as o{ Deccmbcr 31 of’ both years:

Postretiremcnt
Pension Ilcnefits Benefits

(Dolltzrs in tllou.vtuul,y) 1999 1998 1999 1998

Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets
Change in benefit obligation

Ben=fit obligation at J;nuary l........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amendments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Actuarial (gain) loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Benefit obligation at December 31....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$14,746 $12,623 $1,327 $2,366
927 701 7 9

1,078 900 83 141
232 50 (1,390)

(924) 881 (18:) 390
(468) (409) (105) (189)

$15,591 $14,746 $1,132 $1,327

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $20,698 $17,527 $0$0
Actual return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,146 3,580 0 0
Employer contribution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . o 0 105 189
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (468) (409) (105) (189)

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $23,376 $20,698 $0$0

Funded Status Reconciliation and Key Assumpticms—

Reconciliation of funded status
Funded Status . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) ioss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Unrecognized prior service cost.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Unrecognized transition obligation (asset) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts recognized in financial statements consists of:
Prepaid benefit cosV(Accrued benefit liability).. . . . . . . . . . . . .
Intangible asset . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net amount recognized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Postrctircrncnt
Pension llcnefits Benefits

1999 1998 1999 1998

$7,785 $5,952 $(1 ,132) $(1 ,327)
(9,117) (6,476) 247 452
1,127 324 0

0 0 33; 363

$ (205) $ (200) $ (548) $ (512)

$ (205) $ (200) $ (548) $ (512)
9 0 0 0

$ (214) $ (200) $ (548) $ (512)

Thc13ank’s Supplemental Employee Ilet.irement Plar~ (t.hc “SERP” ) \vas the only pension plan \vit h an accumulated
benefit, obligation in excess of plan assets. The SERP’S accurnulat.ccl benefit obligation \vas $1,383,952 as of
l)ccember 31, 1999 ancl $897,1 97asof Decembcr 31,1998.There arc noplanasseis ir~thcSERPduc tothcnaiurcol ’

the SERP. The Corporation’s plan for postrctircment. benefits other than pensions also has no plan assets. The aggregate
benefit obligation for t}]at plan \vas $1,132,282 as of Decernbcr 31, 1999 and $1,326,728 as of’ l)ccembcr 31, 1998.

Thcassurnpt.ions useclin the mcasurernent. of’thc Corporatiorl’s bcncfitobligat.ion arcsholvnonthc [ollo~virlgtablc:

Weighted-average assumptions as of end of year
Discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8.00% 6.75% 8.00% 6.75%
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8.50% 8.25% NIA NIA
Rate of compensation increase . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.00~o 5.00% NIA NIA

Theassumccf hcalthcarc cost trcncl ratefor 1999 andthcrcaft.cr is b%.
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The f’oIlowing t.able provides the components of net perioclic cost (income) for the plans for years cnclecl December 31,
1999, 1998 ancl 1997:

Prmsion Benefits Postrctiroment Benefits

1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997

Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 927 $ 701 $555$7$9 $11

interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,078 900 790 83 141 165

Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1 ,739) (1 ,428) (1,144) o 0 0

Amortization ofprior service cost.... . . . . . . . . . 158 52 38 0 0 0

Amortization oftransition obligation (asset). . . . 25 78 122

Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss . . . . . . . (41:) (37:) (268) 25 17 0

Net periodic benefit cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $6 $ (150) (27) $140 $245 $298

Sensitivity Analysis, Postretirement Benefits

1-Percentage 1-Percentage
Point lncreasc Point Dccrcase

Effect on total of service and interest cost components . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5,902 $ (5,403)

Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73,598 (67,937)

12. Stock Option Plan:

The Corporation maintains a stock option and stock
appreciation rights plan (the “Stock Option Plan”),

which is clescribccl below. The Corporation applies APB
Opinion 25 and rclatccl interpret.ations in accounting for

the Stock Option Plan. Accordingly, no compensation
cost has been recognized for the Stock Opiion Plan. l-lad

compensation for the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan
been clctcrminecl based on the fair value at the grant.
date for awards in 1999, 1998 and 1997, consistent with
the optional provisions of St.atcrnent. of Financial
Accounting St.anclarcls No. 123, ‘accounting [or Stock
Based Cornpcnsation” , the Corporation’s net income and

earnirlgs per share would have been rcclucecl t~Dthepro
forma amounts indicated below:

1999 1098 1997

Net income - as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . $7,961 $6,857 $6,130
Netlncome pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,636 6,373 6,003
Basic earnings per share - as reported $1.63 $1.58 $1.40
Basic earnings per share - pro forma $1.76 $1.47 $1.37

The fair value of each option grant.ecl is estimat.c~ on the
elate of the grant using the 131ack-Scholes option pricing

model wit h thc following weighted-average assumptions
used for grants in 1997, 1998 and 1999: cliviclcncf yield
of 2.50 percent, expect.ecl volatility of 21.7 pcrccnt.,
expect.ccf life of seven years and risk-free interest ra~.es of

7.1, 6.5 and 6.7 percent., respectively.

The Plan had, prior 101994, up 10216,000 authorized
and urrissuccl or treasury shares of t.hc Corporation’s

common stock rcservccl for issuance under the Plan.
During 1994, the sharchoklers’ approved an acklit:ional
217,720 shares for issuanec under t.hc Plan. The option

to purchase shares of the Corporation’s common stock

WaS issuecl to key officers. During 1995, the shareholders
approvccl the issuance of 80,000 shares, 20,000 to be
grant.c(l to outside clircctors, for 4 years rrft.er each

Annrrrrl Meeting. The option price was set at the last. sale
price for the stock on the third business clay following

the Corporation’s Annual lMcct.ing. Optiorls tot.aling
76,000 shares of Corporation siock were issued under the
out.siclc directors’ plan. During 1998, the shareholders
approved the issuance of up to 217,606 shares available

for issuance to both cmployccs and clircct.ors. The price
will be clct.errninc{l by the Corporation’s Compensation
Cornmit.t.ec of the Board of Dircciors at the time t hc
option is grantccl.

options granted may either be “incentive st.ocli options”

within the rncaning of the Internal llcvenue Scrvicc CO~G,

or non-qualified options. The stock options are
exercisable over a period clct.errninccl by t hc Board of

Directors; however, the option pcriocf will not cornmcncc

earlier than onc year or bc longer than ten years from
t.hc date of the grant. The Plan proviclcs that thc option

price at t.hc date of grant. will not bc less than the fair
market value of the Corporation’s comlnon stock. The
following is a summary of transactions unclcr the Plan”



Balance at December 31,1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Balance at December 31,1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Options authorized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

~ Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Balance at December 31,1998.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Options cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Balance at December 31,1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Under for pcr Avc:rngc

Option Option Share Kxercisc Price

357,600 44,520 $4.50-$12.50 $7.83

18,000 (18,000) $ 16.60 $16.60

(35,000) – $7.00-$12.50 $7.43

340,600 26,520 $4.50-$16.94 $8.26

— 217,606 — —

97,400 (97,400) $ 24.50 $24.50

(31 ,920) – $6.75-$24.50 $10.28

406,080 146,726 $4.50-$24.50 $12.06

73,400 (73,400) $ 26,44 $26.44

(40,200) – — —

(10,000) 10,000 — —

429,280 83,326 $4.50-$26.44 $14,08

information pertaining to options out.st.arlding at Dcccmbcr 31, 1999 is as

Price range of shares under option at I)eccmbcr 31, 1999:

Shares Price )Vcightcd Average
Under per I{cmaining
Option Share Contractual I.ifc

[ollo\vs:

}Veighted Average \Vcightcd Average
IIxcrcisc Numhcr Exercise

Price IIxercisahlo Price

14.7,640 $4.50-$ 7.94 2.38 $7.17 147,640 $7.17

114,440 $ 8.00-$12.50 3.35 $8.83 114,440 $8.83

100,200 $16.91-$24.50 8.17 $23.29 100,200 $23.29

67.000 $ 26.44 9.33 $24.50 — —

Balance at December 31,
1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 429,280 $4.50 -$?6.44

The weightecl-average f’airvaluc ofopt.ions granted
cluring 1997,1998 anc11999were $13.99, $7.39 ancl
$6.71, respectively.

The number of exercisable shares at December 31, 1997,
1998 and1999werc 279,960,388,480 ancl,362,280,

respectively, with respect.ivc weight.ecl average exercise
prices of $8.39, $12.25 and $12.15.

St.ock appreciation rightsm aybegrant.ed in tanclernwit.h

non-qualifiecl stock options. No stock appreciation rights
have been grant.ecl under the Plan. The options hacla

$.07 per share, $.11 per share and $.03 per share
clilut.ive effect. on earnings per share for theyearsencled

l)ecember 31,1999, 1998 anc11997, respectively.

5.08 $14.08

13. Related Party Transactions:

The Corporation ha~~ loans outstanding directly to

exccnt.ive officers, clircctors and certain other relal.cd
parties of $3,937,000 and $37836,000 al ~ccember 31,

1999 and 1998, respect.ively.

Followings a summary of thcsclransactions:

(ill tllou.v(lntl.~) 1999 1998

Balance, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,836 $3,506
Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 627 1,173
Amounts collected . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (526) (843)

Balance, end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,937 $3,836

I{elated party cleposits amounted to $765,000 and

$823,000 at I)eccmber 31, 1999 and 1998, respect.ively.
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14. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet
Risk and Concentration of.Credit I{isk:

The Corporation is a party to financial instrurr~cnt.s with
off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of brrsincss t.o
meet the financing needs of its customers. T’hcsc financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit and

standby let.ters of credii. Those instruments involvc, t.o
varying degrees, elcrneuts of credit risk in excess of’ t t~c
amount recognized in the consolidated stat.ement.s of
financial condition. The cent ractual amounts 0[ those
instruments reflect the extent. of involvemcut the
Corporation has in particular classes of’ financial

instruments.

The Corporation’s exposure t.o credit loss in the event of
nonperformance by the count crpart.y to t.hc financial

, instrurncnl. of commitments to extend crcclil and st.anclby
letters of credit is represent.crl by the contractual amount
of those instrurncnt.s. The Corporation uses the same
credit policies in making commit.mcnts and conditional
obligations as it does for on-balance sheet financial
instruments.

Commit mcrrt.s to extend credit. arc agreements to lend to
a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the agreement. Commitments
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Some of the
commit.mcnts arc expected to expire wiihout being c1rawn
upon, and the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent. future cash reqrrirerncnt. s.Total
commitments to ext.cnd credit at. I)ccernber 31, 1999 arc
$113,682,000. The Corporation evaluates each
customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtaincrl, if deemed necessary by the
Corporation upon extension of credit., is based on
management’s credit. evaluation of the counterpart.y.
Collateral varies but. may include accounts receivable,
market.able securities, inventory, property, plant. and
equipment, residential real cst ate, and incornc-producing
commercial propcrt ies,

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments
issued by the Bank t.o a customer for a thircl party. Such
standby letters of credit. are issued to support private

borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involvc:d in
issuing standby letters of credit. is similar to that iuvolvcd
in extending loan facilities to customers. The collateral
varies, but may include accounts receivable, marketable
securities, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and
residential real estate for t.tiosc commitments for which
collateral is deemed necessary. The Corporation’s
obligation under stand}>y letters of credit as of ])ecernber
31, 1999 amounted to $7,882,000. There were no
out.st ancling bankers acceptances as of December
31, 1999.

As of December 31, 1999, the Corporation had no loans
sold with recourse oul.standirrg.

The Corporation grants construction, commercial,
residential mortgage, and consumer loans to cust omcrs
primarily in Southeast.crn Pennsylvania. Although t he
Corporation has a diversified loan portfolio, its debtors’

abiliiy to honor their cent.ract.s is substantially depcnrlent
upon the general economic conditions of tho region.

15. [{isks and Uncertainties:

The earnings of t.hc Corporation depend on t hc earnings

of t.hc Bank. The Bank’s earnings are dependent uporl
both the Ievcl of’ net interest. incornc and non-interest
rcvcnuc streams, primarily fees (or trust. services, that arc
earned annually. Accordingly, the earnings of ihc
Corporation arc subject. to risks and uncertainties
surrounding both its exposure to changes in t hc interest
rate cnvi ronm ent. and rnovcrncnt.s in financial markets.

Most of the 13ank’s lending activity is \vit h customers
located in southeastern Pennsylvania. Lending is spread

between commercial, consumer and real estate relat.erl
loans, including const r-uciion lending. \Vklilc t.hcsc loan
conccntrat ions represent a potential conccnt ration of
credit. risk, the Bank’s credit loss experience compares
favorably to the Bank’s peer group crcrlit loss cxpericncc.

The financial stat.emcnt.s of t.hc Corporation arc prepared
in conformity with genera Ily accepted accounting
principles that, require management to rnakc cst.irnat.cs
and assumptions that affect the reportecl amounts of

assets and liabilities, as \vcll as clisclosurcs of cent ingcnt
assets and liabilities at, the date of ‘the financial
statements and the reported amounts of’ revenues and
expenses during t,hc reported period. Actual results could

differ from those estimates.

Significant. estimates are made by managcrncnt in
determining the allowance for possible loan 10SSCSand
t.bc carrying value of other real estate owned.
Consideration is given to a variety of factors in
establishing these estimates, including current ccouomic
conditions, the results of the internal loan review process,
delirlqucncy statistics, borrowers perceived financial and
managerial strengths, and the adequacy of supporting
collateral, i{ collateral dcpenrlent, or the present value of
future cash flows. Since the allo\vance for possible loan
losses and the carrying value of other real est.at e owned
arc dependent, to a great extent, on general ancl other
economic conditions beyond the Bank’s cent rol, it is at
least. reasonably possible that. the estimates of t hc
allowance for possible loan losses and the carrying value
of other real estat.c owned could differ rnat.crially (rorn
currently reported values in the near term.
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16. Acquisitions:

The following acquisitions were accounted for under the p~lrchasc mct}]od of accolmt ing during ~999. Cood~ill arising
from these transactions has been recorded on the halancc sheet ancl is being amortized on a straight line basis over a 10
to 20 year life. These acqrrisit.ions resulted in both the issuance of common stock (non-cash investing) as well as the
payrncnt. of cash. Following is a clescript.ion of each transaction.

Nrorrl)cr
‘rut:ll . Shares of 01’Shtlrcs

!Metho(i of Diltc 01’ I>orch:lsc Connnon ISSIIC(I or
NooIe of Coulpony Ac(Iuire(i:

Alnortiz~tfion Aniortizc(l
Accorratiog A(:(Iuisiiioin I}ric(> cosh Stock issuable Coo(l\viil I’erio(i io 1999

CDC Capital Management, Purchase 1106/99 $ 281,000 $ — 281,000 10,375 $ 177’,000 10 years $ 181000
(Shares to be issued in
payment for the acquisition
are to be issued over a two
year time period.)

Joseph W. Roskos & Co. Purchase 1/01/99 $4,195,000 $2,195,000 2,000,000 74,697 $3,300,000 20 ‘fears $165,000

Both companies were acquired t.o enhance the number of financial products and scrviccs alrcacty offered by the
Corporation. CDC Capital Management is arl invcslr~lcnt advisory managcmen~ firm, allowing t.hc Corporation t.o better

diversify its clients’ investment.s. Joseph W. Iloskos & Co. is a firm with t’arnily business office services, including
accounting, consulting at tax services and fid~~ciary support. to high-net-wort.}1 individuals arid ~anlilics.

17. Minimum Ilcgulatory Capital Ilcquircmcnts:

tlot h the Corporation ancl the 13ank arc subject to various r~gu Ialory capital rcquirernents> administered by the fcflcral
banking agencies. Irailurc to meet minirnurn capital requireri~cnts can iniliatc certain rnanciatory and possibly additional

discretionary actions by regulators that, if t.akerl, COUld have a direct material effccl on the Corporations and t}l~ l~ank’s
financial statements. Under capital actcquacy guiclcliucs ancl th~ reg~ilatory framework for prompt corrective actior17 the
Corporation and the flank must meet speci(ic capital gui(lelines that. involve quantitative measures of their assets,
liabilities and ccrlain off-halancc-sheet iterns as calculat.cd ~lndcr rcgulat.ory accormt.ing practi~cs. ‘~h~ capital amounts

and classifications are also subject. to qualit.at.ivc j udg~rncnts by the reglllators about components, risk Weigh tirlgs arl~
other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions arc not applicable to bank holding companies.

AS set forth in the following t.able, quantitative measures have I)ecn established to cnsllrc capilal adcqllacy ratios
required of hot }1the Corporation and Bank, spccif’icall y to clefine the rninirnurn respective capital ratios as follows: total
capital to total assets (the leverage ratio) of 40A; Tier I capital to risk weight ccl assets of 4°A and Tier 1[ capital to risk
weight ect assets of 8°A. Bot Ii the Corporat ion’s and the 13ank’s Tier 11 capital ratios are calculated by adding back a
portion of the loan loss reserve to the Tier I capilal. Management believes, as of’ Dcccmber 31, 1999 and 1998 that thc
Corporation and the 13ank have met all capital a~]equacy rcquircrncnts to \vhich t.hcy are subject. l~cdcral banking
rcg~llators have defined specific capital cat.cgories, based on an institrrt.ion’s capital ratios. The categories range for a
best of’ “well capitaltiecl” to a worst of’ “ critically uncler capitalized.” To be consicfcrccl “wcII capitalizccf”, an insi it ut ion
must have a total (Tier 11) capital ratio of’ 10OA or bet.t er. Both the Corporation ancl the Bank have been classified as
“well capitalized” for hot h periods crlding Deccrnber 31, 1999 arid 1998.

The Corporation’s and
in the following table:

the Bank’s actual capital amounts and rat ios as of Dcccrnber 31, 1999 an(l 1998 arc present ccl
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December 31, 1999
Total (Tier 11)Capital to Risk

Weighted Assets:
Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
The Bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Tier I Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets:

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
The Bank.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .’. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total Capital to Total
Assets (Leverage Ratio):

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
The Bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

December31,1998
Total (Tier 11)Capital to Risk

Weighted Assets:
Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
The Bank..................,.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Tier I Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets:

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
The Bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total Capital to Total
Assets (Leverage Ratio):

Consolidated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
The Bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

18. Selected Quar[crly Financial Data (Unaudited):

(IIt lltousunf{.v, i~,rccplpor .911{lr,*fltttu)

interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Provision for loan losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Income before income taxes... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income . . . . . ..- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Earnings per common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Earnings per common share-assuming dilution . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(Ill tlto[t.9flII(L9, e.lcepl per .,h{lrl~tlttff~

Interest income., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net interest income, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Provision for loan losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income -- ------ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Earnings per common share... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Earnings per common share-assuming dilution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . \

*ReclassL~edjor cot?tparative p{trposes.

Minimumio
Minimum Capital

Actual Requirement
1)(!\vcll

Capitalized
Amount Ratiu Amount Ratio Amount

$48,214
42,277

43,814
37,877

46,719
37,487

46,010
41,929

42,121
38,093

42,221
38,193

ls.lgyo

11.54%

11 .08%
10.34%

10.70%
8.76%

14.80%
13.6870

13.55~o
13.68%

9.86%
10.78%

8.0%
$29,298 8.0%

d.oyo
14,649 4.0%

4.0%
17,126 Q.O~o

8.0%
24,877 8.0%

4.0%
12,439 4.0%

4.0%
15,502 4.o%

N/A
$36,623

NIA
21,974

N/A
21,408

N/A
30,661

N/A
18,396

N/A
15,202

Quarters ending 1999

3r31 6/30 9r30 12rJl

$6,632 $7.197 $7,046 $7,442
1;344 1;336 1,467 1,710
5,288 5,861 5,579 5,732

63 62 62
2,842 2,892 2,952 3,18
1,842 2,002 2,026 2,091

$0.42 $0.46 $0.47 $0.48
$0.40 $0.44 $0.45 $0.46

Quarters ending 1998*

3[31 6C30 9t30 12/31

$6,400 $6,494 $6,569 $6,619
1,528 1,514 1,507 1,427
4,872 4,980 5,062 5,192

25 25 37 63
2,616 2,498 2,657 2,566
1,746 1,628 1,732 1,751
0,40 0.38 0.40 0.41
0.38 0.36 0.38 0.39
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19. Condensed Financial Statements: Condensed Statements of Cash F1O}VS

1999 1998 1997The condensed financial stat.ement.s O( the Corporal.ion

(parent company only) as of’ December 31, 1999 and
1998, and for each of the three years in the period cndecl

l)ecemher 31, 1999, are as follo\vs:

Operating activities:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Equity in undistributed losses of
subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amortization of goodwill . . . . . . . . . . .
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$7,961 $6,857 $6,130

Condensed Balance Sheets
(294) (3,134) (852)

98 99 98
183 — —

(iu thou.vuu,19) 1999 1998

Assets:
Cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 701 $ 221
Investments in subsidiaries, at equity in net

assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39,381 38,710
Premises and equipment, net... . . . . . . . . . . 3,958 4,056
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,294 —
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65 72

629 (3) (1)

Net cash provided by operating
activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investing Activities:
Cost of acquiring subsidiaries . . . . . .
Investment in Subsidiaries . . . . . . . . .

8,577 3,819 5,375

(2,195) – –
(1,041) (440) (75)

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $47.399 S43.059
Net cash used by investing

activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Financing activities:

Dividends paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Repayment of mortgage debt. . . . . . .
Repurchase of treasury stock . . . . . . .
Proceeds from issuance

of stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Liabilities and shareholders’ equi~
Mortgages payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 638 $ 668
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 170

(3,236) (440) (75)

(2,603) (2,012) (1,583)
(30) (26) (1,809)

(2,531) (2,519) (1,329)
Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Common stock, par value $1, authorized
25,000,000 shares as of December 31, 1999
and 1998, respectively, issued 5,179,608
shares and 5,067,078 shares as of
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively,
and outstanding 4,323,250 shares and
4,303,818 shares as of December 31, 1999
and1998, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Paid-in capital in excess of par value . . . . . . . .
Unrealized investment (depreciation),

appreciation net of deferred
income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Less common stock in treasury, at cost -

856,358 shares and 763,260 shares as of
December 31,1999 and 1998 . . . . . . . . . . . .

680 838

303 432 260

Net cash used by financing
activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,861) (4,125) (4,461)

Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

480 (746) 839

5,180 5,067
4,467 2,478 221 967 128

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 701 $ 221 $ 967

(389) 100
45,149 39,791 Thcso st.atcmcnts should bc rcacl in conjunction \vith the

oi,hcr notes rclatccl to the consoliclatccl financial
st,atcmcnt. s.(7,688) (5,215)

46,719 42,221Total shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . As a bank and trust company subject t.o the
Pennsylvania 13anking Coclc (“tbc Banking Code”) of

1965 as amcndcrl, the Bank is subject to legal limitations
as to 1he arnounl. of cliviclcncls Ihal. can be paid 10 ii,s
shareholder, t.hc Corporation. ‘1’hc 13anking Cocle rcsi ricts
i,tlc payrncnt of cliviclencls by the Bank to ihc amount of

its ret.aincd earnings. As of l)cccrnbcr 31, 1999, the
Bank’s rctainccl earnings arnountccl IO $31,286,000.
Thcre[orc, as of December 31, 1999, cliviclcncls available
for payment to the Corporation arc limited to

$31,286,000. Since the primary source of dividcnci
f’rrnclingfor the Corporation’s cliviclend paymenls to its
shareho]clcrs is the Bank’s dividends, the Corporation is
cffcctivcly lirnitccl as t.o the amount of’ diviclcncls that, il.
may pay to an arno[lnt, {o the limits placed on the 13ank,
as cliscussccl above,

Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $47.399 $43.059

Condensed Statements of Income

(io llttju.suu{lr) 1999 1998 1997

Dividends from the Bryn Mawr Trust
Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $8,052 $4,012 $5,359

Interest and other income. . . . . . . . . . . . 241 236 237

Total operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,293 4,24[1 5,596
Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 730 677 360

Income before equity in undistributed
income of subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,563 3,571 5,236

Equity in undistributed income of
subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 294 3,136 852

Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . 7,857 6,707 6,088
Federal income tax benefit. . . . . . . . . . . 104 150 42

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $7,961 $6,857 $6,130
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20. Segment Information:

The Corporation’s principal operating segments are structured around the financial services provided its cusiorrlcr-s. The
banking segment gathers cleposit.s and makes funcls available for loans to its cust,omcrs. The Bank’s Investment
Management and Trust. segment provides both corporat{: and individual investment, management and trust products and
services. The Bank’s mortgage banking segment, originates and sells residential mortgage loans to t.hc secondary
mortgage market.

Segment information for the years ended I)ecembcr 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 is as follo\vs:

(A1frrol,.elllfn)

Net interest income . .
Less loan loss

provision . . . . . . . . .

Net interest income
after loan Ioee
provision . . . . . . . . .

Other income
Fees for investment

management and
tmst services . . . .

Sarvice charges
on deposit
accounts . . . . . . . .

Other faes and sewice
oharges . . . . . . . .

Net gain on sale of
loans . . . . . . . . . .

Gtin on sale of
other raai
estate owned . .

Other operating
income . . . . . . . . .

Total other incoma. . . .

Other expanses
Salaries-regular . . . .
Salariea-other. . . . . .
Fringe benefits . .
Occupancy . . . . . . . .
Other operating

expenses . . . . . . .

Total other
expanses . . . . . . . . .

Segment profit
(Ions) . . . . . . . . . . . .

lntareegment (revanues)
e~nses . . . . . . . . .

Segrnant profit after
eliminations . . . . . . .

“1.of segment profit
(loss) . . . . . . . . . .

Total assets at
December 31 . . . . . .

ca~tal
expenditures. . . . . . .

Depraciatlon and
arnottization . . . . . . .

1!JY9

Nlorlgnge All
BmIMIIg Trtlnl B/~rrMllg Otlwr cl)llsl)lilI1ltw

S 22,310 S —s 145$ 5 $ 22,4eo

250 -. — — 250

22,060 —

— 9,734

1,156 —

571 —

44 –

45 —

1,115 —

145

762

984

—

5

4568

22,210

9,734

1,156

1,333

1,028

45

5,633

2,931 9,784 1,746 4,568 19,029

7,251 2,852 469 1,674 12,446
1,754 230 78 184 2,246
1,474 565 80 215 2,334
3,020 476 149 456 4,171

5,218 94.2 310 1,726 &202

16,787 5,071 1,036 4,455 29,399

6,204 4,713 805 118 11,640

176 181 — (357) –

S 6,380 $4,884 $ 605 ($ 239) S 11.340

52% 40Y. 7% 1% Im

$398,546 S 413 $27,337 $10,524 $436,820

$759 s95s 14 $ 236 $ l,lW

s 693 $ 162 $ 29 $ 435 $ 1,319

l!]9~* 1997*

hl(lrr:!lg,. All
IIl]lkillg TrIISt ff[lllkll!g Olller Corlsofi[ll!tt.11

20,052 $ — $ 51 $ 3 $20,108

150––– 150

19,W2 — 51

— 9,272 —

1,169 — —

571 — 701

35 — 1,647

224——

3

—

—

—

—

19,956

9,272

1,169

1,272

1,682

224

631 — — 1079 1,710

2,630 9,272 2,346 1,079 15,329

6,469 2,663 417 520 10,289
1,692 366 117 180 2,375
1,232 549 74 53 1,908
2,793 422 62 160 3,457

5,0Q3 898 400 616 5,919

17,209 5,116 1,070 1,551 24,948

5,323 4,154 1,329 (469) 10,337

36 161 — (219) –

5,361 $4,335 $1,329 ($ 666) $10,337

51Y. 40% 13% (4%) 100%

369,556 $ 455 $16,532 $5,297 $391,640

2,106 $ 370 $ 93 $ 30 $ 2,601

1,146 $ 139 $ 16 $ 106 $ 1,407

hll,rtg;lgl, ,\ll
B[nlkit]g Trl[st BiIIIkIIIg Oill,,r Cl,l!s[][i(l;atrtl

16,368 $ — $ — $ — $ 18,366

2oo ——— 200

18,166 —

7,698

1,124 —

791 —

(562) –

379 —

526 —

—

—

567

1,091

4

—

—

—

—

370

le,168

7,696

1,124

1,37e

509

379

902

2,240 7,696 1,662 370 11,990

5,656 2,415 235 96 6,604
1,347 215 93 — 1,655
1,237 501 45 6 1,791
2,543 361 39 223 3,166

4,730 733 233 166 5,662

15,715 4,225 645 493 21,076

4,693 3,473 1,037 (123) 9,060

50 161 — (231) –

‘ Bryn iMa\vr 13ank Corporai,ion, Tax Counscllors of 13ryn Ma\vr, Inc., Insurance Counscllors
lMa\vr 13rokcragc Company, Inc., CDC Capital ltianagement., Inc. and Joseph W. I{oskos &

; 4,743 $3,654 $1,037 ($ 354) $ 9,060

52”A 36% llY. (l%) 1ooYe

~366,839 $ 158 $ — $5,213 $374,210

il,462$80$—$ – $ 1,542

685$105$3$ 96 $ 1,091

of Bryn lMa\vr, Inc., ,BrYrl
Company have all been

aggregated in All Others.

*. Reclasst~ed Jbr col~tparalive pl~rposes.



Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation:

In” our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and of cash flows pres,ent. fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These financial statements are the
responsibility y of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
January 20, 2000
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